
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina


Consideration of the City of Fayetteville's request to annex a 0.51 acre lot located at 104 Ellis Road in Land District 5, and to rezone said 


lot from C-H (Commercial Highway) to C-3 (Highway Commercial).


The City of Fayetteville has notified Fayette County of its desire to annex a 0.51 acre lot located at 104 Ellis Road.  The City has also 


notified the County of its intention to rezone the property from C-H (Commercial Highway) to C-3 (Highway Commercial). 


 


The county's governing authority may either "not object" to the request for annexation, or may, by majority vote, "object" to the annexation 


request. 


 


Per Section 36-36-113 of the Georgia Code, Fayette County must deliver their objection to the annexation by certified mail or statutory 


overnight delivery not later than the end of the thirtieth calendar day following receipt of the notice.    The deadline for delivery of an 


objection is February 27, 2013. 


 


Additional information will be provided to the Board of Commissioners on and before the February 14, 2013 Board of Commissioners 


meeting date.


Staff has reviewed the application and, after finding no bona fide objection, recommends the Board's approval by not objecting.


Not Applicable


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessThursday, February 14, 2013





































		Planning and Zoning- City of ...ville Agenda Requset File

		Planning and Zoning- City of Fayetteville Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Public Works Phil Mallon


Approval of staff's request to accept a proposed amendment to extend an existing Intergovernmental Agreement between the Town of 


Tyrone and Fayette County, Georgia for an additional eight (8) months, and to include a provision for use of a borrow pit at Handley Park. 


On February 24, 2011, the Fayette County Board of Commissioners agreed to an IGA with Tyrone for drainage and paving improvements 


along 1,700 feet of Valleywood Road.  The project extends from Senoia Road to just east of the stream crossing.  


 


On March 8, 2012 the Agreement was amended to extend the terms to February 23, 2013.  The initial delay was due to design and 


permitting issues associated with the CSX Railroad crossing.  The work around the railroad has since been completed.  Field work on the 


remaining section is ready to start as soon a final design is received.  With identification of a proximate borrow source (i.e., Handley Park) 


staff expects the design will be soon finalized and work can begin in early spring 2013.  


 


The proposed amendment was approved by Tyrone Council in January 2013.  A copy of the amendment, the original Agreement and the 


March 8, 2012 amendment are provided as back-up to this request.  


Approval of staff's request to accept a proposed amendment to extend an existing Intergovernmental Agreement between the Town of 


Tyrone and Fayette County Georgia for an additional eight (8) months, and to include a provision for use of a borrow pit at Handley Park.


No funding needs are associated with the amendment.  For the project, Fayette County is providing labor and equipment, Tyrone is 


providing materials and professional services.  


Yes March 8, 2012


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, February 14, 2013













		Final- Public Works- Valleywood Agenda Request File

		Final- Public Works- Valleywood Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Water System Tony Parrott


Approval of the Water System Director's recommendation to award Bid #868- Water Distribution Parts, consisting of six contracts in an 


aggregate amount of $259,580.00, to six companies that were low bidders on items used by the Fayette County Water System for water 


distribution, and authorization for the Chairman to sign the contracts contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


Items used by the Water System for repair and maintenance in distribution are purchased as needed. Quantities ordered vary depending 


on the need, so exact quantity cannot be predetermined. Enough stock is kept in inventory at the Distribution Shop to avoid water 


customers being without water for long periods of time when there is a main break that needs emergency repair.  The six companies 


recommended for contracts are:  Consolidated Pipe & Supply, Co. Inc., Delta Municipal Supply Co., Dublin Winnelson, Ferguson 


Waterworks, Hayes Pipe Supply, and H.D. Supply Waterworks.  Page eleven (11) of Attachment A reflects each bidders proposed unit 


cost to each item requested in this solicitation. 


 


Three year agreement language: 


The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and continue for a period of one year through December 31, 2013 (the 


“Initial Term”).  Thereafter, this Agreement may be renewed by the County for two additional one year renewal terms (each a “Renewal 


Term” and together with the Initial Term, the “Term”), which renewal will be by letter or other written correspondence from the County to 


Contractor ninety (90) days prior to expiration of the Initial Term or the then current Renewal Term.  If the County fails to provide notice of 


renewal, this Agreement will terminate at the end of the Initial Term or the then current Renewal Term. This Agreement is subject to the 


multi-year contractual provisions of O.C.G.A. 36-60-13(a).


Approval of the Water System Director's recommendation to award Bid #868- Water Distribution Parts, consisting of six contracts in an 


aggregate amount of $259,580.00, to six companies that were low bidders on items used by the Fayette County Water System for water 


distribution, and authorization for the Chairman to sign the contracts contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


Funding is budgeted in the Water System repairs to meters and water lines 50544021-522266. Bid #868 not to exceed $259,580.


No


No Yes


Yes


Yes


Good example of a small unit based competitive bid proposal and the type of bid process that easily converts into a multi-year contract.


ConsentThursday, February 14, 2013







 


 
Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214 Main Phone:  770-460-5730 Web Site:  www.fayettecountyga.gov 


 


 


      TO: Ted Burgess, Purchasing  


 


FROM:   Tony Parrott, Water System Director  


 


 DATE: January 28, 2013 


 


      RE:   Award Recommendations for Bid #868 – Water Distribution Parts – 2013 


 


 


I am recommending awarding Bid # 868 to six companies that were low bidders on items used by the Fayette 


County Water System for water distribution and repair: 


 


Consolidated Pipe & Supply Co., Inc. 


Delta Municipal Supply Co., Inc. 


Dublin Winnelson 


Ferguson Waterworks 


Hayes Pipe Supply 


H. D. Supply Waterworks 


 


 


Attached is the low bid for each vendor.   Line Item 34 had bids from two vendors with the same price and we 


recommend that it be awarded to Hayes Pipe Supply. 


 


All of these items are used by the Water System for repair and maintenance and are purchased as needed.  


Quantities ordered vary depending on the need, so exact quantities cannot be predetermined.  Our stock is kept up-


to-date at the Distribution Shop to avoid customers being without water for long periods of time when there is a 


main break that needs emergency repair. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Cc:  James Munster 


     







 


Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214 Main Phone:  770-460-5730 Web Site:  www.fayettecountyga.gov


 
 
 
 
To:  Steve Rapson 
 
From:  Ted L. Burgess 
 
Date:  January 31, 2013 
 
Subject: Bid #868 – Water Distribution Parts 
 
The Water System maintains an inventory of repair and replacement parts to use as 
needed during year to keep the water distribution system working properly.  As the parts 
are used, the inventory must be replenished.  Invitation to Bid #868 was issued to 
establish prices for 225 such items for calendar year 2013. 
 
Invitations were direct-mailed to 25 vendors.  In addition, invitations were extended via 
the Fayette News, the county website, Georgia Local Government Access Marketplace 
(www.glga.org), and Channel 23.  Six vendors responded to the invitation to bid.  The 
Water System recommends that each item be awarded to the lowest bidder, which 
means that all six vendors would be awarded contracts (please see the attached spread 
sheet).  The Purchasing Department supports their recommendations. 
 
 
Attachment 



http://www.glga.org/





ATTACHMENT A
BID #868 WATER DISTRIBUTION PARTS - TALLY SHEET


CATEGORY ITEM #
DESCRIPTION


SPECIFICATIONS


ESTIMATED 
QUANTITY FOR 


A YEAR UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE


BACKFLOW 
PREVENTOR 1 6"  DDCII


Double Detector Check Valve 
Assembly with O,S, & Y Valves 10 $1,600.00 $16,000.00 $1,722.22 $17,222.20 $1,600.00 $16,000.00 $1,604.54 $16,045.40 $1,663.16 $16,631.60 $1,610.00 $16,100.00 $1,695.00 $16,950.00


2 8"  DDCII
Double DetectorCheck Valve 


Assembly with O,S, & Y Valves 20 $2,590.00 $51,800.00 $2,788.89 $55,777.80 $2,590.00 $51,800.00 $2,611.87 $52,237.40 $2,789.48 $55,789.60 $2,704.08 $54,081.60 2880 $57,600.00


3 4" Backflow Preventor
Double Check Valve Assembly - 


with O,S, & Y Valves 2 $884.50 $1,769.00 $944.44 $1,888.88 $890.00 $1,780.00 $884.50 $1,769.00 $1,015.79 $2,031.58 $985.00 $1,970.00 990 $1,980.00


4 6" Backflow Preventer
Double Check Valve Assembly - 


with O,S, & Y Valves 1 $1,240.00 $1,240.00 $1,334.44 $1,334.44 $1,240.00 $1,240.00 $1,249.74 $1,249.74 $1,475.24 $1,475.24 $1,428.60 $1,428.60 1465 $1,465.00


5 8" Backflow Preventer
Double Check Valve Assembly - 


with O,S, & Y Valves 1 $2,450.00 $2,450.00 $2,638.89 $2,638.89 $2,450.00 $2,450.00 $2,471.38 $2,471.38 $2,631.58 $2,631.58 $2,550.00 $2,550.00 2825 $2,825.00


TOTAL $73,259.00 TOTAL $78,862.21 TOTAL $73,270.00 TOTAL $73,772.92 TOTAL $78,559.60 TOTAL $76,130.20 TOTAL $80,820.00


BRASS 
CHECK 
VALVES 6


3/4" Dual Check Valve


with inlet 1" female meter 
thread connector x outlet 3/4" 
female national pipe tapered 


thread 500 $17.25 $8,625.00 $17.44 $8,720.00 $0.00 $19.19 $9,595.00 $19.22 $9,610.00 $17.25 $8,625.00 $22.40 $11,200.00


7


1" Dual Check Valve


with inlet 1 1/4" female meter 
thread connector x outlet 1" 
female national pipe tapered 


thread 30 $19.90 $597.00 $22.11 $663.30 $0.00 $24.17 $725.10 $23.69 $710.70 $19.90 $597.00 $29.10 $873.00


8


1 1/2" Double Check 
Valve


Double Check Valve Assembly 
- with 1/4 turn ball valve shut 


offs 30 $156.67 $4,700.10 $156.67 $4,700.10 $0.00 $189.27 $5,678.10 $163.16 $4,894.80 $158.20 $4,746.00 $252.00 $7,560.00


9 2" Double Check Valve


Double Check Valve Assembly 
- with 1/4 turn ball valve shut 


offs 30 $185.56 $5,566.80 $185.56 $5,566.80 $0.00 $236.59 $7,097.70 $202.11 $6,063.30 $195.90 $5,877.00 $281.00 $8,430.00


10


3/4"  Retrosetter  with 
Valve


equivalent to Ford # Retro-
2CVBHH 24 $92.77 $2,226.48 $92.77 $2,226.48 $120.00 $2,880.00 $122.52 $2,940.48 $109.00 $2,616.00 $126.86 $3,044.64 $141.00 $3,384.00


TOTAL $21,715.38 TOTAL $21,876.68 TOTAL $2,880.00 TOTAL $26,036.38 TOTAL $23,894.80 TOTAL $22,889.64 TOTAL $31,447.00


METERS 11 6"  Hersey Meter Hersey - MFM/MCT II 1 $5,200.00 $5,200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,174.19 $7,174.19 $5,265.96 $5,265.96 $7,200.00 $7,200.00 $5,200.00 $5,200.00


12 8 " Hersey Meter Hersey - MFM/MCT II 1 $6,382.98 $6,382.98 $0.00 $0.00 $9,685.12 $9,685.12 $6,382.98 $6,382.98 $9,000.00 $9,000.00 $6,700.00 $6,700.00


TOTAL $11,582.98 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $16,859.31 TOTAL $11,648.94 TOTAL $16,200.00 TOTAL $11,900.00


CONSOLIDATED PIPE & 
SUPPLY, INC.


All brass valves and fittings must be certified lead-free and manufactured 


HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS HAYES PIPE SUPPLY, INC.
FERGUSON ENTERPRISES 


INC. DUBLIN WINNELSON
DELTA MUNICIPAL SUPPLY 


COMPANYPROPOSED AWARD


1







ATTACHMENT A
BID #868 WATER DISTRIBUTION PARTS - TALLY SHEET


CATEGORY ITEM #
DESCRIPTION


SPECIFICATIONS


ESTIMATED 
QUANTITY FOR 


A YEAR UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE


CONSOLIDATED PIPE & 
SUPPLY, INC.HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS HAYES PIPE SUPPLY, INC.


FERGUSON ENTERPRISES 
INC. DUBLIN WINNELSON


DELTA MUNICIPAL SUPPLY 
COMPANYPROPOSED AWARD


BRASS 13 3/4"  Meter Connection


2-piece with male iron pipe 
thread - swivel nut - domestic 
brass only 240 $6.77 $1,624.80 $6.93 $1,663.20 $7.15 $1,716.00 $7.08 $1,699.20 $0.00 $6.77 $1,624.80 $6.97 $1,672.80


14


3/4 x 2.25  Meter 
Connection


 2-piece with male iron pipe 
thread - swivel nut - domestic 
brass only  20 $6.77 $135.40 $6.93 $138.60 $7.15 $143.00 $7.08 $141.60 $0.00 $6.77 $135.40 $6.97 $139.40


15 1"  Meter Connection


 2-piece with male iron pipe 
thread - swivel nut - domestic 
brass only 50 $10.12 $506.00 $10.66 $533.00 $10.80 $540.00 $10.89 $544.50 $0.00 $10.12 $506.00 $10.72 $536.00


16 1 1/2"  Meter Connection


2-piece with male iron pipe 
thread - swivel nut - domestic 
brass only 48 $28.91 $1,387.68 $29.52 $1,416.96 $29.80 $1,430.40 $30.15 $1,447.20 $0.00 $28.91 $1,387.68 $31.43 $1,508.64


17 2"  Meter Connection


 2-piece with male iron pipe 
thread - swivel nut - domestic 
brass only 48 $39.92 $1,916.16 $41.11 $1,973.28 $41.50 $1,992.00 $41.95 $2,013.60 $0.00 $39.92 $1,916.16 $45.66 $2,191.68


18 3/4" Curb Stop


lockwing ball valve - full port - 
female iron pipe x female iron 
pipe - domestic brass only 120 $36.84 $4,420.80 $38.08 $4,569.60 $38.10 $4,572.00 $38.90 $4,668.00 $0.00 $36.84 $4,420.80 $41.48 $4,977.60


19 1" Curbstop


lockwing ball valve - full port - 
female iron pipe x female iron 
pipe - domestic brass only 40 $56.39 $2,255.60 $58.36 $2,334.40 $58.35 $2,334.00 $59.61 $2,384.40 $0.00 $56.39 $2,255.60 $63.67 $2,546.80


20 1 1/2" Curb Stop


lockwing ball valve - full port - 
female iron pipe x female iron 
pipe - domestic brass only 20 $114.26 $2,285.20 $117.95 $2,359.00 $117.90 $2,358.00 $120.45 $2,409.00 $0.00 $114.26 $2,285.20 $130.02 $2,600.40


21 2" Curbstop FIP x FIP


lockwing ball valve - full port - 
female iron pipe x female iron 
pipe - domestic brass only 20 $165.90 $3,318.00 $171.81 $3,436.20 $171.80 $3,436.00 $175.45 $3,509.00 $0.00 $165.90 $3,318.00 $188.55 $3,771.00


22 3/4" Corp Stop Comp


 inlet - 3/4" cc thread - outlet 3/4" 
compression - domestic brass 
only 60 $22.46 $1,347.60 $23.26 $1,395.60 $23.50 $1,410.00 $28.86 $1,731.60 $0.00 $22.46 $1,347.60 $24.55 $1,473.00


23 3/4" Corp Stop IPT


 inlet - 3/4" male iron pipe thread -
outlet 3/4" compression - 
domestic brass only 12 $22.46 $269.52 $23.26 $279.12 $23.50 $282.00 $23.75 $285.00 $0.00 $22.46 $269.52 $24.55 $294.60


24 1" Corp Stop Comp


 inlet - 1" cc thread -      outlet - 
1" compression - domestic brass 
only 60 $34.07 $2,044.20 $35.17 $2,110.20 $35.50 $2,130.00 $35.92 $2,155.20 $0.00 $34.07 $2,044.20 $37.96 $2,277.60


25 1" Corp Stop IPT


 inlet - 1" male iron pipe thread -   
outlet 1" compression - domestic 
brass only 12 $34.07 $408.84 $35.17 $422.04 $35.50 $426.00 $35.92 $431.04 $0.00 $34.07 $408.84 $37.96 $455.52


26


3/4" Adapter  
Compression


 3/4" compression x        3/4" 
male iron pipe thread - domestic 
brass only 100 $10.32 $1,032.00 $10.66 $1,066.00 $10.75 $1,075.00 $10.89 $1,089.00 $0.00 $10.32 $1,032.00 $11.49 $1,149.00


27 1"  Adapter Compression


1" compression x              1" 
male iron pipe thread - domestic 
brass only 100 $12.22 $1,222.00 $12.63 $1,263.00 $12.75 $1,275.00 $12.90 $1,290.00 $0.00 $12.22 $1,222.00 $13.58 $1,358.00


28


1 1/2" Adapter 
Compression


 1 1/2 compression x          1 1/2 
male iron pipe thread - domestic 
brass only 12 $34.42 $413.04 $34.58 $414.96 $34.55 $414.60 $35.32 $423.84 $0.00 $34.42 $413.04 $37.54 $450.48


29


1x3/4" Adapter 
Compression


 1" compression x               3/4" 
male iron pipe thread - domestic 
brass only 100 $11.40 $1,140.00 $11.80 $1,180.00 $11.75 $1,175.00 $12.06 $1,206.00 $0.00 $11.40 $1,140.00 $11.89 $1,189.00


30 2"  Adapter Compression


2" compression x              2" 
male iron pipe thread - domestic 
brass only 12 $48.71 $584.52 $50.40 $604.80 $50.35 $604.20 $51.46 $617.52 $0.00 $48.71 $584.52 $54.69 $656.28


31


3/4" Compression 
Coupling


 3-part union - comp. x comp. - 
domestic brass only 100 $12.52 $1,252.00 $12.98 $1,298.00 $13.10 $1,310.00 $13.26 $1,326.00 $0.00 $12.52 $1,252.00 $14.02 $1,402.00


All brass valves and fittings must be certified lead-free and manufactured 


2







ATTACHMENT A
BID #868 WATER DISTRIBUTION PARTS - TALLY SHEET


CATEGORY ITEM #
DESCRIPTION


SPECIFICATIONS


ESTIMATED 
QUANTITY FOR 


A YEAR UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE


CONSOLIDATED PIPE & 
SUPPLY, INC.HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS HAYES PIPE SUPPLY, INC.


FERGUSON ENTERPRISES 
INC. DUBLIN WINNELSON


DELTA MUNICIPAL SUPPLY 
COMPANYPROPOSED AWARD


32 1" Compression Coupling
3-part union - comp. x comp. - 
domestic brass only 100 $14.39 $1,439.00 $14.85 $1,485.00 $15.00 $1,500.00 $15.17 $1,517.00 $0.00 $14.39 $1,439.00 $15.30 $1,530.00


33 1" U Branch  Flare (14)


 1" flared copper x 34 male iron 
pipe thread x 14" long - domestic 
brass only 10 $52.17 $521.70 $53.93 $539.30 $53.90 $539.00 $55.02 $550.20 $0.00 $52.17 $521.70 $60.41 $604.10


34 1" U  Branch  Comp (14)


1" comp. Copper x 3/4 male iron 
pipe thread x 14" long - domestic 
brass only 20 $55.85 $1,117.00 $55.85 $1,117.00 $55.85 $1,117.00 $57.04 $1,140.80 $0.00 $62.19 $1,243.80 $60.64 $1,212.80


35 1x1x1" Comp Tee
 1" comp. end runs x 1" comp 
side outlet - domestic brass only 10 $32.48 $324.80 $33.61 $336.10 $33.95 $339.50 $34.33 $343.30 $0.00 $32.48 $324.80 $44.69 $446.90


36


1 x 1 x 3/4 Comp. Service 
Tee


 1" comp. end runs x 3/4" comp. 
side outlet - domestic brass only 10 $33.42 $334.20 $34.51 $345.10 $34.50 $345.00 $35.25 $352.50 $0.00 $33.42 $334.20 $38.34 $383.40


37


1 x 3/4 x 3/4 Comp. 
Service Tee


 1" comp.  End runs x 3/4"' 
comp. Side outlet - domestic 
brass only 10 $32.41 $324.10 $33.47 $334.70 $33.80 $338.00 $34.18 $341.80 $0.00 $32.41 $324.10 $34.37 $343.70


38 3/4x3/4x1" WYE domestic brass only 10 $25.75 $257.50 $26.86 $268.60 $0.00 $27.44 $274.40 $0.00 $25.75 $257.50 $27.58 $275.80


TOTAL $31,881.66 TOTAL $32,883.76 TOTAL $32,801.70 TOTAL $33,891.70 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $32,008.46 TOTAL $35,446.50


BRASS 
NIPPLES/     
BUSHING 39 3/4" Brass Closed Nipple domestic brass only 100 $1.55 $155.00 $0.00 $1.85 $185.00 $1.59 $159.00 $0.00 $1.55 $155.00 $1.65 $165.00


40 1" Brass Closed Nipple domestic brass only 100 $2.15 $215.00 $0.00 $2.75 $275.00 $2.34 $234.00 $0.00 $2.15 $215.00 $2.42 $242.00


41


1 1/2" Brass Closed 
Nipple domestic brass only 60 $4.25 $255.00 $0.00 $5.35 $321.00 $4.58 $274.80 $0.00 $4.25 $255.00 $4.75 $285.00


42 2" Brass Closed Nipple domestic brass only 60 $6.59 $395.40 $0.00 $7.70 $462.00 $6.98 $418.80 $0.00 $6.59 $395.40 $7.25 $435.00


43 2x4 Brass Nipple domestic brass only 12 $10.59 $127.08 $0.00 $12.50 $150.00 $11.37 $136.44 $0.00 $10.59 $127.08 $11.80 $141.60


44 2 x 6 Brass Nipple domestic brass only 12 $15.55 $186.60 $0.00 $17.50 $210.00 $16.79 $201.48 $0.00 $15.55 $186.60 $17.45 $209.40


45 2 x 12 Brass Nipple domestic brass only 12 $29.25 $351.00 $0.00 $34.00 $408.00 $33.07 $396.84 $0.00 $29.25 $351.00 $34.40 $412.80


46 1 1/2" Gate Valve  Brass


 non-rising stem - solid wedge - 
female iron pipe x female iron 
pipe - domestic brass only 10 $32.93 $329.30 $0.00 $20.00 $200.00 $32.93 $329.30 $0.00 $39.99 $399.90 $67.00 $670.00


47 2" Gate Valve  Brass


 non-rising stem - solid wedge - 
female iron pipe x female iron 
pipe - domestic brass only 20 $44.99 $899.80 $0.00 $80.00 $1,600.00 $44.99 $899.80 $0.00 $58.00 $1,160.00 $81.00 $1,620.00


48 1 x 3/4 Brass Hex Bushing


 1" female iron pipe thread x 3/4" 
male iron pipe thread - domestic 
brass only 20 $3.73 $74.60 $0.00 $0.00 $5.65 $113.00 $0.00 $3.73 $74.60 $5.60 $112.00


49


1 1/2 X 1 Brass Hex 
Bushing


 1 1/2" female iron pipe thread x 
1" male iron pipe thread - 
domestic brass only 20 $8.87 $177.40 $0.00 $0.00 $13.68 $273.60 $0.00 $8.87 $177.40 $13.55 $271.00


50 2 x 1 Brass Hex Bushing


2" female iron pipe thread x 1" 
male iron pipe thread - domestic 
brass only 20 $10.85 $217.00 $0.00 $0.00 $16.87 $337.40 $0.00 $10.85 $217.00 $16.70 $334.00


51


2 1/2 x 2  Brass Hex 
Bushing


Meter Coupling Bushing - 
domestic brass only - equivalent 
to A.Y. McDonald 4620BB 2 60 $12.40 $744.00 $12.40 $744.00 $0.00 $42.58 $2,554.80 $0.00 $36.46 $2,187.60 $42.20 $2,532.00


52 2 x 1 1/2"  Bushing


 Meter Coupling Bushing - 
domestic brass only - equivalent 
to A.Y. McDonald 4620BB 1 1/2  60 $9.73 $583.80 $9.73 $583.80 $0.00 $16.87 $1,012.20 $0.00 $23.01 $1,380.60 $16.70 $1,002.00


TOTAL $4,710.98 TOTAL $1,327.80 TOTAL $3,811.00 TOTAL $7,341.46 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $7,282.18 TOTAL $8,431.80


All brass valves and fittings must be certified lead-free and manufactured 


3







ATTACHMENT A
BID #868 WATER DISTRIBUTION PARTS - TALLY SHEET


CATEGORY ITEM #
DESCRIPTION


SPECIFICATIONS


ESTIMATED 
QUANTITY FOR 


A YEAR UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE


CONSOLIDATED PIPE & 
SUPPLY, INC.HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS HAYES PIPE SUPPLY, INC.


FERGUSON ENTERPRISES 
INC. DUBLIN WINNELSON


DELTA MUNICIPAL SUPPLY 
COMPANYPROPOSED AWARD


TAPPING 
SADDLES 53


2 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle - 
PVC


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
2.38 - 2.50 4 $11.40 $45.60 $11.40 $45.60 $14.40 $57.60 $16.87 $67.48 $0.00 $20.97 $83.88 $14.55 $58.20


54


2" X 3/4" Tapping Saddle - 
CI


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
2.38 - 2.50 4 $11.40 $45.60 $11.40 $45.60 $14.40 $57.60 $16.87 $67.48 $0.00 $20.97 $83.88 $14.55 $58.20


55


2 x 1 Tapping Saddle  
PVC


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
2.38 - 2.50 4 $12.51 $50.04 $12.51 $50.04 $14.40 $57.60 $16.87 $67.48 $0.00 $20.97 $83.88 $14.55 $58.20


56 2 x 1 Tapping Saddle CI
cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
2.88 - 3.00 4 $12.51 $50.04 $12.51 $50.04 $16.10 $64.40 $16.87 $67.48 $0.00 $20.97 $83.88 $14.55 $58.20


57


3 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle 
PVC


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
3.50 4 $13.56 $54.24 $13.56 $54.24 $18.50 $74.00 $21.65 $86.60 $0.00 $22.44 $89.76 $17.11 $68.44


58 3 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle  CI
cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
3.80 - 3.96 4 $13.56 $54.24 $13.56 $54.24 $23.70 $94.80 $21.65 $86.60 $0.00 $22.44 $89.76 $17.11 $68.44


59 3 x 1 Tapping Saddle CI
cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
3.80 - 3.96 4 $14.17 $56.68 $14.17 $56.68 $23.70 $94.80 $21.65 $86.60 $0.00 $22.44 $89.76 $17.11 $68.44


60 3 x 1 Tapping Saddle PVC
cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
3.50 4 $13.50 $54.00 $13.50 $54.00 $18.50 $74.00 $21.65 $86.60 $0.00 $22.44 $89.76 $17.11 $68.44


61


4 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle  
PVC


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
4.50 - 4.80 4 $15.39 $61.56 $15.39 $61.56 $18.45 $73.80 $21.59 $86.36 $0.00 $25.90 $103.60 $19.31 $77.24


62 4 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle CI
cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
4.74 - 5.63 4 $15.39 $61.56 $15.39 $61.56 $18.45 $73.80 $21.59 $86.36 $0.00 $25.90 $103.60 $19.31 $77.24


63


4 x 1  Tapping Saddle  
PVC


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
4.50 - 4.80 4 $15.39 $61.56 $15.39 $61.56 $18.45 $73.80 $21.59 $86.36 $0.00 $25.90 $103.60 $19.31 $77.24


64 4 x 1  Tapping Saddle  CI
cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
4.74 - 5.63 4 $15.99 $63.96 $15.99 $63.96 $18.45 $73.80 $21.59 $86.36 $0.00 $25.90 $103.60 $19.31 $77.24


65


4 x 2  Tapping Saddle  
PVC


IP thread - double strap - O.D. 
4.50 - 4.80 2 $20.02 $40.04 $20.02 $40.04 $23.60 $47.20 $27.58 $55.16 $0.00 $36.50 $73.00 $27.29 $54.58


66 4 x 2  Tapping Saddle  CI
IP thread - double strap - O.D. 
4.74 - 5.63 2 $20.97 $41.94 $20.97 $41.94 $23.60 $47.20 $27.58 $55.16 $0.00 $36.50 $73.00 $27.29 $54.58


67


6 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle  
PVC


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
6.63 - 6.90 8 $16.76 $134.08 $16.76 $134.08 $20.30 $162.40 $26.63 $213.04 $0.00 $28.56 $228.48 $25.34 $202.72


68 6 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle  CI
cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
6.90 - 7.22 8 $19.70 $157.60 $19.70 $157.60 $20.30 $162.40 $26.63 $213.04 $0.00 $28.56 $228.48 $25.34 $202.72


69


6 x 1 Tapping Saddle  
PVC


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
6.63 - 6.90 8 $16.76 $134.08 $16.76 $134.08 $20.30 $162.40 $26.63 $213.04 $0.00 $28.56 $228.48 $25.34 $202.72


70 6 x 1 Tapping Saddle  CI
cc thread - double strap - O.D. - 
6.90 -7.22 8 $19.70 $157.60 $19.70 $157.60 $20.30 $162.40 $26.63 $213.04 $0.00 $28.56 $228.48 $25.34 $202.72


71


8 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle  
PVC


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
8.50 - 8.63 8 $23.00 $184.00 $23.02 $184.16 $23.00 $184.00 $26.87 $214.96 $0.00 $32.11 $256.88 $25.98 $207.84


72 8 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle CI
cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
9.05 - 9.42 8 $21.51 $172.08 $21.51 $172.08 $22.20 $177.60 $29.15 $233.20 $0.00 $32.11 $256.88 $25.98 $207.84


73 8 x 1 Tapping Saddle CI
cc thread  -double strap - O.D. 
9.05 - 9.42 8 $21.51 $172.08 $21.51 $172.08 $22.20 $177.60 $29.15 $233.20 $0.00 $32.11 $256.88 $25.98 $207.84


74 8 x 1 Tapping Saddle PVC
cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
8.50 - 8.63 8 $23.00 $184.00 $23.02 $184.16 $23.00 $184.00 $26.87 $214.96 $0.00 $32.11 $256.88 $25.98 $207.84


75


10 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle 
PVC


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
10.75 - 11.10 6 $27.79 $166.74 $27.79 $166.74 $30.35 $182.10 $35.46 $212.76 $0.00 $37.02 $222.12 $37.17 $223.02


76


10 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle 
CI


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
11.10 - 11.60 6 $27.79 $166.74 $27.79 $166.74 $30.35 $182.10 $35.46 $212.76 $0.00 $37.02 $222.12 $37.17 $223.02


77


10 x 1 Tapping Saddle 
PVC


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
10.75 - 11.10 6 $27.79 $166.74 $27.79 $166.74 $30.35 $182.10 $35.46 $212.76 $0.00 $37.02 $222.12 $37.17 $223.02


78 10 x 1 Tapping Saddle CI
cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
11.10 - 11.60 6 $27.79 $166.74 $27.79 $166.74 $30.35 $182.10 $35.46 $212.76 $0.00 $37.02 $222.12 $37.17 $223.02


79 10 x 2 Tapping Saddle CI
IP thread - double strap - O.D. 
11.10 - 11.60 2 $35.39 $70.78 $35.39 $70.78 $39.15 $78.30 $45.75 $91.50 $0.00 $54.65 $109.30 $45.32 $90.64


80


10 x 2 Tapping Saddle 
PVC


IP thread - double strap - O.D. 
10.75 - 11.10 2 $35.39 $70.78 $35.39 $70.78 $39.15 $78.30 $45.75 $91.50 $0.00 $54.65 $109.30 $45.32 $90.64


81


12 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle  
PVC


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
12.75 - 13.20 4 $33.34 $133.36 $33.34 $133.36 $36.80 $147.20 $45.21 $180.84 $0.00 $43.07 $172.28 $43.32 $173.28


4







ATTACHMENT A
BID #868 WATER DISTRIBUTION PARTS - TALLY SHEET


CATEGORY ITEM #
DESCRIPTION


SPECIFICATIONS


ESTIMATED 
QUANTITY FOR 


A YEAR UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE


CONSOLIDATED PIPE & 
SUPPLY, INC.HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS HAYES PIPE SUPPLY, INC.


FERGUSON ENTERPRISES 
INC. DUBLIN WINNELSON


DELTA MUNICIPAL SUPPLY 
COMPANYPROPOSED AWARD


82


12 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle  
CI


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
12.62 - 14.32 4 $33.34 $133.36 $33.34 $133.36 $36.80 $147.20 $45.21 $180.84 $0.00 $43.07 $172.28 $43.32 $173.28


83


12 x 1 Tapping Saddle 
PVC


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
12.75 - 13.20 4 $33.34 $133.36 $33.34 $133.36 $36.80 $147.20 $45.21 $180.84 $0.00 $43.07 $172.28 $43.32 $173.28


84 12 x 1 Tapping Saddle CI
cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
12.62 - 14.32 4 $33.34 $133.36 $33.34 $133.36 $36.80 $147.20 $45.21 $180.84 $0.00 $43.07 $172.28 $43.32 $173.28


85


12 x 2 Tapping Saddle  
PVC


IP thread - double strap - O.D. 
12.75 - 13.20 2 $42.42 $84.84 $42.42 $84.84 $46.45 $92.90 $57.11 $114.22 $0.00 $43.43 $86.86 $53.74 $107.48


86 12 x 2 Tapping Saddle  CI
IP thread - double strap - O.D. 
12.75 - 13.20 2 $41.64 $83.28 $41.64 $83.28 $46.45 $92.90 $57.11 $114.22 $0.00 $43.43 $86.86 $53.74 $107.48


87


16 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle 
CI


cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
17.40 - 18.88 2 $56.00 $112.00 $56.55 $113.10 $60.00 $120.00 $70.83 $141.66 $0.00 $56.00 $112.00 $74.88 $149.76


88 16 x 1 Tapping Saddle CI
cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
17.40 - 18.88 2 $56.00 $112.00 $56.55 $113.10 $60.00 $120.00 $70.83 $141.66 $0.00 $56.00 $112.00 $74.88 $149.76


89


16 x 2 Tapping Saddle CI  
IPT


IP thread - double strap - O.D. 
17.40 - 18.88 2 $65.19 $130.38 $76.99 $153.98 $82.15 $164.30 $96.93 $193.86 $0.00 $65.19 $130.38 $81.77 $163.54


90


20 x 3/4 Tapping Saddle 
CI


cc thead - double strap - O.D. 
21.60 - 22.06 2 $47.97 $95.94 $81.21 $162.42 $156.50 $313.00 $184.86 $369.72 $0.00 $47.97 $95.94 $83.21 $166.42


91 20 x 1 Tapping Saddle  CI
cc thread - double strap - O.D. 
21.60 - 22.06 2 $47.97 $95.94 $81.21 $162.42 $156.50 $313.00 $184.86 $369.72 $0.00 $47.97 $95.94 $83.21 $166.42


92 20 x 2 Tapping Saddle CI
IP thread - double strap - O.D. 
21.60 - 22.06 2 $66.06 $132.12 $110.40 $220.80 $156.50 $313.00 $184.86 $369.72 $0.00 $66.06 $132.12 $97.01 $194.02


93 24 x 1 Tapping Saddle CI
cc thread - double strap - O.D. - 
25.80 2 $70.00 $140.00 $85.54 $171.08 $165.50 $331.00 $195.43 $390.86 $0.00 $70.00 $140.00 $87.45 $174.90


TOTAL $4,365.04 TOTAL $4,643.88 TOTAL $5,671.10 TOTAL $6,783.60 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $5,984.70 TOTAL $5,713.18


REPAIR 
CLAMP 94 2"  PVC Repair Clamp


5-bolt - 12 1/2" long -       O.D. 
2.35 - 2.63 10 $47.24 $472.40 $49.23 $492.30 $48.50 $485.00 $49.03 $490.30 $0.00 $52.67 $526.70 $47.24 $472.40


95 2 1/2"  CI Repair Clamp
5-bolt - 12 1/2" long -       O.D. 
2.70 - 3.00 10 $50.25 $502.50 $51.86 $518.60 $50.25 $502.50 $50.74 $507.40 $0.00 $54.20 $542.00 $52.55 $525.50


96 3"  PVC Repair Clamp
5-bolt - 12 1/2" long -        O.D. 
3.46 - 3.70 10 $54.68 $546.80 $54.68 $546.80 $56.40 $564.00 $56.98 $569.80 $0.00 $55.21 $552.10 $55.41 $554.10


97 3"  CI  Repair Clamp
5-bolt - 12 1/2" long -     O.D. 
3.73 - 4.00 10 $55.21 $552.10 $56.27 $562.70 $56.40 $564.00 $56.98 $569.80 $0.00 $55.21 $552.10 $57.01 $570.10


98 4"  PVC  Repair Clamp
5-bolt - 12 1/2" long -          O.D. 
4.45 - 4.73 10 $56.60 $566.00 $61.11 $611.10 $56.60 $566.00 $57.18 $571.80 $0.00 $62.02 $620.20 $61.95 $619.50


99 4"  CI  Repair Clamp
5-bolt - 12 1/2" long -    O.D. 4.74 
- 5.14 10 $58.05 $580.50 $61.41 $614.10 $58.05 $580.50 $58.63 $586.30 $0.00 $62.02 $620.20 $62.20 $622.00


100 6" PVC Repair  Clamp
5-bolt - 12 1/2" long -    O.D. 6.56 
- 6.96 20 $62.35 $1,247.00 $69.71 $1,394.20 $62.35 $1,247.00 $63.66 $1,273.20 $0.00 $68.01 $1,360.20 $70.63 $1,412.60


101 6"  CI  Repair Clamp
5-bolt - 12 1/2" long -      O.D 
6.84 - 7.24 20 $68.01 $1,360.20 $70.73 $1,414.60 $69.15 $1,383.00 $70.57 $1,411.40 $0.00 $68.01 $1,360.20 $71.64 $1,432.80


5







ATTACHMENT A
BID #868 WATER DISTRIBUTION PARTS - TALLY SHEET


CATEGORY ITEM #
DESCRIPTION


SPECIFICATIONS


ESTIMATED 
QUANTITY FOR 


A YEAR UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE


CONSOLIDATED PIPE & 
SUPPLY, INC.HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS HAYES PIPE SUPPLY, INC.


FERGUSON ENTERPRISES 
INC. DUBLIN WINNELSON


DELTA MUNICIPAL SUPPLY 
COMPANYPROPOSED AWARD


102 8"  PVC Repair Clamp
5-bolt - 12 1/2" long -    O.D. 8.54 
- 8.94 20 $73.20 $1,464.00 $82.20 $1,644.00 $73.20 $1,464.00 $73.90 $1,478.00 $0.00 $78.50 $1,570.00 $83.27 $1,665.40


103 8"  CI  Repair Clamp
5-bolt - 12 1/2" long -    O.D. 8.99 
- 9.39 20 $73.20 $1,464.00 $84.71 $1,694.20 $73.20 $1,464.00 $73.90 $1,478.00 $0.00 $78.50 $1,570.00 $85.82 $1,716.40


104 10"  PVC Repair Clamp
5-bolt - 15" long -      O.D. 10.64 - 
11.04 10 $103.65 $1,036.50 $125.35 $1,253.50 $103.65 $1,036.50 $105.75 $1,057.50 $0.00 $107.83 $1,078.30 $127.00 $1,270.00


105 10"  CI  Repair Clamp
5-bolt - 15" long -     O.D. 11.04 - 
11.44 10 $103.65 $1,036.50 $126.04 $1,260.40 $103.65 $1,036.50 $105.75 $1,057.50 $0.00 $107.83 $1,078.30 $129.10 $1,291.00


106 12"  PVC Repair Clamp
5-bolt - 15" long -       O.D. 12.62 
- 13.02 10 $115.04 $1,150.40 $141.13 $1,411.30 $117.90 $1,179.00 $120.30 $1,203.00 $0.00 $115.04 $1,150.40 $142.95 $1,429.50


107 12"   CI  Repair Clamp
5-bolt - 15" long -         O.D. 
13.10 - 13.50 10 $115.04 $1,150.40 $145.23 $1,452.30 $117.90 $1,179.00 $120.30 $1,203.00 $0.00 $115.04 $1,150.40 $147.12 $1,471.20


108 16"  CI Repair Clamp O.D. - 17.15 - 17.90 - 16" long 2 $215.80 $431.60 $301.48 $602.96 $215.80 $431.60 $220.20 $440.40 $0.00 $224.94 $449.88 $314.36 $628.72


109 18"  CI Repair Clamp O.D. - 19.23 - 19.54 - 16" long 2 $227.40 $454.80 $318.10 $636.20 $227.40 $454.80 $232.09 $464.18 $0.00 $258.74 $517.48 $331.70 $663.40


110 20"  CI Repair Clamp O.D. - 21.52 - 22.27 - 16" long 2 $240.95 $481.90 $336.75 $673.50 $240.95 $481.90 $246.06 $492.12 $0.00 $260.94 $521.88 $351.13 $702.26


111 24" CI Repair Clamp O.D. - 25.80 - 26.32 - 16" long 2 $344.68 $689.36 $575.65 $1,151.30 $441.30 $882.60 $454.92 $909.84 $0.00 $344.68 $689.36 $600.24 $1,200.48


112 30" CI Repair Clamp O.D. - 31.74 - 32.94 - 16" long 2 $396.43 $792.86 $0.00 $501.65 $1,003.30 $517.13 $1,034.26 $0.00 $396.43 $792.86 $695.80 $1,391.60


113 6 x 3/4 PVC Repair Clamp O.D. 6.56 - 6.96 - cc thread 6 $57.15 $342.90 $87.61 $525.66 $57.15 $342.90 $82.52 $495.12 $0.00 $84.10 $504.60 $91.46 $548.76


114 6 x 3/4 CI Repair Clamp O.D. 6.84 - 7.24 - cc thread 6 $58.00 $348.00 $87.61 $525.66 $58.00 $348.00 $83.69 $502.14 $0.00 $84.10 $504.60 $92.47 $554.82


115 6 x 1 PVC Repair Clamp O.D. 6.56 - 6.96 - cc thread 6 $57.15 $342.90 $88.63 $531.78 $57.15 $342.90 $82.52 $495.12 $0.00 $84.10 $504.60 $91.46 $548.76


116 6 x 1 CI Repair Clamp O.D. 6.84 - 7.24 - cc thread 6 $58.00 $348.00 $88.63 $531.78 $58.00 $348.00 $83.69 $502.14 $0.00 $84.10 $504.60 $92.47 $554.82


117 8 x 3/4 PVC Repair Clamp O.D. 8.54 - 8.94 - cc thread 6 $64.65 $387.90 $102.60 $615.60 $64.65 $387.90 $94.78 $568.68 $0.00 $90.08 $540.48 $104.11 $624.66


118 8 x 3/4 CI Repair Clamp O.D. 8.99 - 9.39 - cc thread 6 $64.65 $387.90 $100.09 $600.54 $64.65 $387.90 $94.78 $568.68 $0.00 $90.08 $540.48 $106.64 $639.84


119 8 x 1 PVC Repair Clamp O.D. 8.54 - 8.94 - cc thread 6 $64.65 $387.90 $100.09 $600.54 $64.65 $387.90 $94.78 $568.68 $0.00 $90.08 $540.48 $104.11 $624.66


120 8 x 1 CI Repair Clamp O.D. 8.99 - 9.39 - cc thread 6 $64.65 $387.90 $102.60 $615.60 $64.65 $387.90 $94.78 $568.68 $0.00 $90.08 $540.48 $106.64 $639.84


TOTAL $18,913.22 TOTAL $22,481.22 TOTAL $19,438.60 TOTAL $21,067.04 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $20,882.88 TOTAL $24,375.12


COUPLING 121


2" Galvanized Dresser 
Coupling compression - screw type 12 $14.12 $169.44 $19.20 $230.40 $21.00 $252.00 $16.49 $197.88 $0.00 $14.12 $169.44 $21.00 $252.00


TOTAL $169.44 TOTAL $230.40 TOTAL $252.00 TOTAL $197.88 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $169.44 TOTAL $252.00


6







ATTACHMENT A
BID #868 WATER DISTRIBUTION PARTS - TALLY SHEET


CATEGORY ITEM #
DESCRIPTION


SPECIFICATIONS


ESTIMATED 
QUANTITY FOR 


A YEAR UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE


CONSOLIDATED PIPE & 
SUPPLY, INC.HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS HAYES PIPE SUPPLY, INC.


FERGUSON ENTERPRISES 
INC. DUBLIN WINNELSON


DELTA MUNICIPAL SUPPLY 
COMPANYPROPOSED AWARD


VALVES 122 4" MJ Gate Valve


domestic only - left hand open - 
non-rising stem - resilient seat 
wedge - with Mechanical Joint 


gland packs      2 $299.86 $599.72 $313.18 $626.36 $332.00 $664.00 $299.86 $599.72 $0.00 $0.00 $354.86 $709.72


123 6" Gate Valve


domestic only - left hand open - 
non-rising stem - resilient seat 
wedge - with Mechanical Joint 


gland packs 4 $387.99 $1,551.96 $401.18 $1,604.72 $421.80 $1,687.20 $387.99 $1,551.96 $0.00 $0.00 $425.33 $1,701.32


124 8" Gate Valve


domestic only - left hand open - 
non-rising stem - resilient seat 
wedge - with Mechanical Joint 


gland packs 4 $417.43 $1,669.72 $417.43 $1,669.72 $655.20 $2,620.80 $603.54 $2,414.16 $0.00 $0.00 $661.68 $2,646.72


125 10" MJ Gate Valve


domestic only - left hand open - 
non-rising stem - resilient seat 
wedge - with Mechanical Joint   


gland packs 2 $938.37 $1,876.74 $975.96 $1,951.92 $1,015.00 $2,030.00 $938.37 $1,876.74 $0.00 $0.00 $1,028.29 $2,056.58


TOTAL $5,698.14 TOTAL $5,852.72 TOTAL $7,002.00 TOTAL $6,442.58 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $7,114.34


WHEEL 
VALVE 126 4" Wheel Valve


domestic only - left hand open - 
outside stem and yoke - flange x 


flange 4 $281.05 $1,124.20 $743.75 $2,975.00 $281.05 $1,124.20 $373.11 $1,492.44 $0.00 $0.00 $443.74 $1,774.96


127 6" Wheel Valve


domestic only - left hand open - 
outside stem and yoke - flange x 


flange 4 $375.65 $1,502.60 $959.71 $3,838.84 $375.65 $1,502.60 $484.60 $1,938.40 $0.00 $0.00 $646.41 $2,585.64


128 8" Wheel Valve


domestic only - left hand open - 
outside stem and yoke - flange x 


flange 4 $587.10 $2,348.40 $1,466.19 $5,864.76 $587.10 $2,348.40 $740.35 $2,961.40 $0.00 $0.00 $1,059.20 $4,236.80


TOTAL $4,975.20 TOTAL $12,678.60 TOTAL $4,975.20 TOTAL $6,392.24 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $8,597.40


FITTINGS 129 2"  Solid Sleeve
domestic only - with Mechanical 


Joint gland packs - 12" long 6 $63.94 $383.64 $81.38 $488.28 $80.35 $482.10 $63.94 $383.64 $0.00 $0.00 $88.55 $531.30


130 3"  Solid Sleeve
domestic only - with Mechanical 


Joint gland packs - 12" long 6 $66.00 $396.00 $66.32 $397.92 $66.00 $396.00 $69.51 $417.06 $0.00 $0.00 $72.75 $436.50


131 4"  Solid Sleeve
domestic only - with Mechanical 


Joint gland packs - 12" long 6 $77.85 $467.10 $78.26 $469.56 $77.85 $467.10 $82.02 $492.12 $0.00 $0.00 $85.80 $514.80


132 6"  Solid Sleeve
domestic only - with Mechanical 


Joint gland packs - 12" long 10 $106.11 $1,061.10 $106.11 $1,061.10 $108.20 $1,082.00 $113.98 $1,139.80 $0.00 $0.00 $119.50 $1,195.00


133 8"  Solid Sleeve
domestic only - with Mechanical 


Joint gland packs - 12" long 10 $135.25 $1,352.50 $135.96 $1,359.60 $135.25 $1,352.50 $142.48 $1,424.80 $0.00 $0.00 $149.10 $1,491.00


134 10"  Solid Sleeve
domestic only - with Mechanical 


Joint gland packs - 12" long 6 $198.60 $1,191.60 $199.63 $1,197.78 $198.60 $1,191.60 $209.21 $1,255.26 $0.00 $0.00 $218.25 $1,309.50


135 12"  Solid Sleeve
domestic only - with Mechanical 


Joint gland packs - 12" long 6 $251.40 $1,508.40 $252.68 $1,516.08 $251.40 $1,508.40 $264.80 $1,588.80 $0.00 $0.00 $277.25 $1,663.50


136 6" Plug domestic only 6 $49.08 $294.48 $49.08 $294.48 $49.35 $296.10 $51.43 $308.58 $0.00 $0.00 $53.81 $322.86


137 6" Plug with 2" Tap domestic only 6 $68.97 $413.82 $68.97 $413.82 $69.35 $416.10 $72.28 $433.68 $0.00 $0.00 $76.10 $456.60


138 8" Plug domestic only 6 $69.64 $417.84 $69.64 $417.84 $70.00 $420.00 $72.98 $437.88 $0.00 $0.00 $76.10 $456.60


139 8" Plug with 2" Tap domestic only 6 $89.53 $537.18 $89.53 $537.18 $90.00 $540.00 $93.83 $562.98 $0.00 $0.00 $97.75 $586.50


140 6" Cap domestic only 6 $32.50 $195.00 $32.50 $195.00 $32.70 $196.20 $34.06 $204.36 $0.00 $0.00 $35.65 $213.90


141 8" Cap domestic only 6 $51.07 $306.42 $51.07 $306.42 $51.35 $308.10 $53.52 $321.12 $0.00 $0.00 $55.70 $334.20


7







ATTACHMENT A
BID #868 WATER DISTRIBUTION PARTS - TALLY SHEET


CATEGORY ITEM #
DESCRIPTION


SPECIFICATIONS


ESTIMATED 
QUANTITY FOR 


A YEAR UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE


CONSOLIDATED PIPE & 
SUPPLY, INC.HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS HAYES PIPE SUPPLY, INC.


FERGUSON ENTERPRISES 
INC. DUBLIN WINNELSON


DELTA MUNICIPAL SUPPLY 
COMPANYPROPOSED AWARD


142 6"  45 Degree Bend
domestic only with Mechanical 


Joint gland packs 6 $103.60 $621.60 $104.12 $624.72 $103.60 $621.60 $109.12 $654.72 $0.00 $0.00 $114.35 $686.10


143 6"  90 Degree Bend
domestic only with Mechanical 


Joint gland packs 6 $118.10 $708.60 $118.72 $712.32 $118.10 $708.60 $124.41 $746.46 $0.00 $0.00 $130.68 $784.08


144 6"  22 1/2 Degree Bend
domestic only with Mechanical 


Joint gland packs 6 $97.65 $585.90 $98.16 $588.96 $97.65 $585.90 $102.86 $617.16 $0.00 $0.00 $108.00 $648.00


145 6"  11 1/4 Degree Bend
domestic only with Mechanical 


Joint gland packs 6 $99.65 $597.90 $100.15 $600.90 $99.65 $597.90 $104.95 $629.70 $0.00 $0.00 $110.25 $661.50


146 8"  11 1/4 Degree Bend
domestic only with Mechanical 


Joint gland packs 6 $127.35 $764.10 $128.00 $768.00 $127.35 $764.10 $134.14 $804.84 $0.00 $0.00 $140.90 $845.40


147 8"  22 1/2 Degree  Bend
domestic only with Mechanical 


Joint gland packs 6 $135.25 $811.50 $135.96 $815.76 $135.25 $811.50 $142.48 $854.88 $0.00 $0.00 $149.10 $894.60


148 8"  45  Degree  Bend
domestic only with Mechanical 


Joint gland packs 6 $137.20 $823.20 $137.95 $827.70 $137.20 $823.20 $144.56 $867.36 $0.00 $0.00 $152.00 $912.00


149 8"  90  Degree Bend
domestic only with Mechanical 


Joint gland packs 6 $161.60 $969.60 $162.49 $974.94 $161.60 $969.60 $170.28 $1,021.68 $0.00 $0.00 $178.40 $1,070.40


TOTAL $14,407.48 TOTAL $14,568.36 TOTAL $14,538.60 TOTAL $15,166.88 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $16,014.34


FIRE 
HYDRANTS 150 Fire Hydrant 


3-way traffic -  3 1/2 bury - open 
left - base MJ 10 $1,105.00 $11,050.00 $1,272.30 $12,723.00 $1,210.00 $12,100.00 $1,206.27 $12,062.70 $1,220.37 $12,203.70 $0.00 $1,105.00 $11,050.00


TOTAL $11,050.00 TOTAL $12,723.00 TOTAL $12,100.00 TOTAL $12,062.70 TOTAL $12,203.70 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $11,050.00


M & H 
REPAIR 
PARTS 151 M&H 129 FH Riser (12) riser kit - 4 1/2 barrel 6 $191.58 $1,149.48 $191.58 $1,149.48 $0.00 $200.89 $1,205.34 $250.00 $1,500.00 $0.00 $202.00 $1,212.00


152 M&H 129 FH Riser (18) riser kit - 4 1/2 barrel 6 $206.32 $1,237.92 $206.32 $1,237.92 $0.00 $216.34 $1,298.04 $293.00 $1,758.00 $0.00 $218.00 $1,308.00


153 M&H 129 FH Riser (24) riser kit - 4 1/2 barrel 6 $221.05 $1,326.30 $221.05 $1,326.30 $0.00 $231.79 $1,390.74 $345.00 $2,070.00 $0.00 $235.00 $1,410.00


154


M&H 129 Valve Seat 
Gasket -rub  10 $11.53 $115.30 $11.53 $115.30 $0.00 $36.32 $363.20 $26.67 $266.70 $0.00 $36.55 $365.50


155 M&H 129 Repair Kit traffic repair kit - 4 1/2 barrel 10 $72.93 $729.30 $72.93 $729.30 $0.00 $75.72 $757.20 $126.58 $1,265.80 $0.00 $78.00 $780.00


156 M&H 129 Hydrant Gasket 10 $6.55 $65.50 $0.00 $6.55 $65.50 $26.67 $266.70 $0.00 $7.00 $70.00


157 M&H Operating Nut left hand open 10 $58.32 $583.20 $190.65 $1,906.50 $0.00 $197.80 $1,978.00 $58.32 $583.20 $0.00 $204.00 $2,040.00


TOTAL $5,207.00 TOTAL $6,464.80 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $7,058.02 TOTAL $7,710.40 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $7,185.50


KENNEDY     
K-10 REPAIR 


PARTS 158


Kennedy K-10   Flat 
Repair Kit traffic repair kit - 4 1/2 barrel 10 $151.05 $1,510.50 $151.05 $1,510.50 $0.00 $158.39 $1,583.90 $0.00 $0.00 $161.00 $1,610.00


TOTAL $1,510.50 TOTAL $1,510.50 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $1,583.90 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $1,610.00


CLOW 2500 
REPAIR 
PARTS 159 Clow 2500 FH  Repair Kit traffic repair kit - 4 1/2 barrel 10 $132.63 $1,326.30 $132.63 $1,326.30 $185.00 $1,850.00 $139.08 $1,390.80 $0.00 $0.00 $142.00 $1,420.00


TOTAL $1,326.30 TOTAL $1,326.30 TOTAL $1,850.00 TOTAL $1,390.80 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $1,420.00


CLOW 
MEDAL. 
REPAIR 
PARTS 160


4 1/2 Clow Medal FH 
Repair Kit traffic repair kit - 4 1/2 barrel 10 $81.05 $810.50 $81.05 $810.50 $185.00 $1,850.00 $91.95 $919.50 $0.00 $0.00 $95.00 $950.00


TOTAL $810.50 TOTAL $810.50 TOTAL $1,850.00 TOTAL $919.50 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $950.00


8







ATTACHMENT A
BID #868 WATER DISTRIBUTION PARTS - TALLY SHEET


CATEGORY ITEM #
DESCRIPTION


SPECIFICATIONS


ESTIMATED 
QUANTITY FOR 


A YEAR UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE


CONSOLIDATED PIPE & 
SUPPLY, INC.HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS HAYES PIPE SUPPLY, INC.


FERGUSON ENTERPRISES 
INC. DUBLIN WINNELSON


DELTA MUNICIPAL SUPPLY 
COMPANYPROPOSED AWARD


KENNEDY K-
11 SCREW 


REPAIR 
PARTS 161


Kennedy K-11 Screw 
Repair Kit traffic repair kit - 4 1/2 barrel 10 $333.34 $3,333.40 $87.68 $876.80 $0.00 $333.34 $3,333.40 $0.00 $0.00 $338.00 $3,380.00


TOTAL $3,333.40 TOTAL $876.80 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $3,333.40 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $3,380.00


MUELLER 
REPAIR PART 162 Mueller 300  Repair Kit traffic repair kit - 4 1/2 barrel 10 $91.95 $919.50 $87.68 $876.80 $0.00 $91.95 $919.50 $0.00 $0.00 $95.00 $950.00


TOTAL $919.50 TOTAL $876.80 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $919.50 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $950.00


A.D. MARK 73 
REPAIR 
PARTS 163 Amer. Darling  Repair Kit traffic repair kit - 4 1/2 barrel 10 $82.16 $821.60 $82.16 $821.60 $0.00 $86.15 $861.50 $0.00 $0.00 $90.00 $900.00


164


Amer. Darling Operating 
Nut 73-1 - left hand open 10 $165.90 $1,659.00 $174.63 $1,746.30 $0.00 $165.90 $1,659.00 $0.00 $0.00 $185.00 $1,850.00


TOTAL $2,480.60 TOTAL $2,567.90 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $2,520.50 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $2,750.00


U.S. PIPE 
REPAIR 
PARTS 165


Metropolitan 250 Repair 
Kit traffic repair kit - 4 1/2 barrel 10 $81.05 $810.50 $81.05 $810.50 $132.00 $1,320.00 $84.99 $849.90 $0.00 $0.00 $87.00 $870.00


TOTAL $810.50 TOTAL $810.50 TOTAL $1,320.00 TOTAL $849.90 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $870.00


HYDRANT 
BOLTS 166


Fire Hydrant Breakaway 
Bolt 100 $5.16 $516.00 $5.69 $569.00 $9.70 $970.00 $5.16 $516.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6.40 $640.00


TOTAL $516.00 TOTAL $569.00 TOTAL $970.00 TOTAL $516.00 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $640.00


ANCHOR 
COUPLINGS - 
BOLTS - ROD 167


6" Fire Hydrant Anchor 
Coupling domestic only 10 $95.05 $950.50 $95.50 $955.00 $95.05 $950.50 $100.08 $1,000.80 $0.00 $0.00 $106.00 $1,060.00


168


8" Fire Hydrant Anchor 
Coupling domestic only 10 $141.85 $1,418.50 $142.59 $1,425.90 $141.85 $1,418.50 $149.43 $1,494.30 $0.00 $0.00 $155.68 $1,556.80


169 3/4" All Thread Rod 10 ft. lenghts 300 $1.23 $369.00 $1.25 $375.00 $2.20 $660.00 $1.23 $369.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1.50 $450.00


170


3/4 x 3 1/2" Tee Bolts with 
Nuts 250 $0.89 $222.50 $0.89 $222.50 $1.25 $312.50 $0.97 $242.50 $0.00 $0.00 $1.25 $312.50


171


3/4 x 4" Tee Bolts with 
Nuts 250 $0.96 $240.00 $0.96 $240.00 $1.35 $337.50 $1.04 $260.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1.25 $312.50


172


3/4 x 3 1/2" Shoulder Bolts 
with Nuts 250 $1.27 $317.50 $1.27 $317.50 $1.50 $375.00 $1.38 $345.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2.40 $600.00


173


3/4 x 4 Shoulder Bolts with 
Nuts 250 $1.38 $345.00 $1.38 $345.00 $1.75 $437.50 $1.51 $377.50 $0.00 $0.00 $2.40 $600.00


174 Eye Bolts with Nuts 250 $1.65 $412.50 $2.06 $515.00 $1.75 $437.50 $1.78 $445.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1.65 $412.50


175 3/4 Nuts 250 $0.29 $72.50 $0.50 $125.00 $0.45 $112.50 $0.41 $102.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.29 $72.50


TOTAL $4,348.00 TOTAL $4,520.90 TOTAL $5,041.50 TOTAL $4,636.60 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $5,376.80


GASKETS/  
GLAND 
PACKS 176 2" Transition Gasket For Class 200 PVC Pipe 10 $1.68 $16.80 $1.68 $16.80 $2.00 $20.00 $2.16 $21.60 $0.00 $0.00 $2.55 $25.50


177 3"  Transition Gasket For Class 200 PVC Pipe 10 $1.82 $18.20 $1.82 $18.20 $2.00 $20.00 $2.34 $23.40 $0.00 $0.00 $2.65 $26.50


178 4"  Transition  Gasket For Class 200 PVC Pipe 10 $2.33 $23.30 $2.33 $23.30 $2.50 $25.00 $2.99 $29.90 $0.00 $0.00 $3.00 $30.00


9







ATTACHMENT A
BID #868 WATER DISTRIBUTION PARTS - TALLY SHEET


CATEGORY ITEM #
DESCRIPTION


SPECIFICATIONS


ESTIMATED 
QUANTITY FOR 


A YEAR UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE


CONSOLIDATED PIPE & 
SUPPLY, INC.HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS HAYES PIPE SUPPLY, INC.


FERGUSON ENTERPRISES 
INC. DUBLIN WINNELSON


DELTA MUNICIPAL SUPPLY 
COMPANYPROPOSED AWARD


179 6"  Transition  Gasket For Class 200 PVC Pipe 20 $2.83 $56.60 $2.83 $56.60 $3.00 $60.00 $3.64 $72.80 $0.00 $0.00 $3.50 $70.00


180 8"  Transition  Gasket For Class 200 PVC Pipe 20 $3.93 $78.60 $3.93 $78.60 $4.00 $80.00 $5.05 $101.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5.20 $104.00


181 10"  Transition  Gasket For Class 200 PVC Pipe 20 $4.76 $95.20 $4.76 $95.20 $5.00 $100.00 $6.11 $122.20 $0.00 $0.00 $7.20 $144.00


182 12"  Transition  Gasket For Class 200 PVC Pipe 10 $5.46 $54.60 $5.46 $54.60 $5.75 $57.50 $7.02 $70.20 $0.00 $0.00 $7.75 $77.50


183 2" MJ Gasket 10 $1.46 $14.60 $1.46 $14.60 $1.75 $17.50 $2.50 $25.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2.55 $25.50


184 3" MJ Gasket 10 $1.90 $19.00 $1.94 $19.40 $2.10 $21.00 $2.50 $25.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1.90 $19.00


185 4" MJ Gasket 10 $1.94 $19.40 $1.94 $19.40 $2.10 $21.00 $2.50 $25.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2.00 $20.00


186 6" MJ Gasket 20 $1.94 $38.80 $1.94 $38.80 $2.10 $42.00 $3.12 $62.40 $0.00 $0.00 $2.25 $45.00


187 8" MJ Gasket 20 $2.43 $48.60 $2.43 $48.60 $2.75 $55.00 $3.75 $75.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2.50 $50.00


188 10" MJ Gasket 20 $2.91 $58.20 $2.91 $58.20 $3.00 $60.00 $3.75 $75.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3.85 $77.00


189 12" MJ Gasket 10 $3.93 $39.30 $3.93 $39.30 $4.00 $40.00 $5.05 $50.50 $0.00 $0.00 $4.25 $42.50


190 16" MJ Gasket 10 $6.47 $64.70 $6.47 $64.70 $6.50 $65.00 $8.32 $83.20 $0.00 $0.00 $7.85 $78.50


191 18" MJ Gasket 10 $7.88 $78.80 $7.88 $78.80 $8.00 $80.00 $10.14 $101.40 $0.00 $0.00 $10.00 $100.00


192 20" MJ Gasket 10 $8.29 $82.90 $8.29 $82.90 $8.50 $85.00 $10.66 $106.60 $0.00 $0.00 $10.55 $105.50


193 24" MJ Gasket 10 $10.27 $102.70 $10.27 $102.70 $11.00 $110.00 $13.21 $132.10 $0.00 $0.00 $12.75 $127.50


194 30" MJ Gasket 10 $24.90 $249.00 $24.90 $249.00 $26.00 $260.00 $31.46 $314.60 $0.00 $0.00 $29.00 $290.00


195 2" Transition Gland Pack 10 $7.68 $76.80 $7.68 $76.80 $7.75 $77.50 $12.21 $122.10 $0.00 $0.00 $15.00 $150.00


196 3" Transition Gland Pack 10 $6.87 $68.70 $6.87 $68.70 $7.20 $72.00 $12.21 $122.10 $0.00 $0.00 $12.50 $125.00


197 4" Transition Gland Pack 10 $9.30 $93.00 $9.30 $93.00 $9.70 $97.00 $15.50 $155.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12.65 $126.50


198 6" Transition Gland  Pack 20 $12.53 $250.60 $12.53 $250.60 $12.70 $254.00 $19.07 $381.40 $0.00 $0.00 $17.65 $353.00


199 8" Transition Gland Pack 20 $14.15 $283.00 $14.15 $283.00 $14.30 $286.00 $22.82 $456.40 $0.00 $0.00 $18.85 $377.00


200 10" Transition Gland Pack 20 $20.21 $404.20 $20.21 $404.20 $20.50 $410.00 $31.81 $636.20 $0.00 $0.00 $22.60 $452.00


201 12" Transition Gland Pack 20 $21.02 $420.40 $21.02 $420.40 $21.25 $425.00 $33.38 $667.60 $0.00 $0.00 $23.75 $475.00


202 2" MJ Gland Pack 10 $6.06 $60.60 $6.06 $60.60 $6.30 $63.00 $8.64 $86.40 $0.00 $0.00 $15.00 $150.00


203 3" MJ Gland Pack 10 $6.47 $64.70 $6.47 $64.70 $6.55 $65.50 $8.64 $86.40 $0.00 $0.00 $12.35 $123.50


204 4" MJ Gland Pack 10 $8.89 $88.90 $8.89 $88.90 $9.00 $90.00 $11.88 $118.80 $0.00 $0.00 $12.70 $127.00


205 6" MJ Gland Pack 20 $12.13 $242.60 $12.13 $242.60 $12.25 $245.00 $16.20 $324.00 $0.00 $0.00 $18.35 $367.00


206 8" MJ Gland Pack 20 $13.74 $274.80 $13.74 $274.80 $13.90 $278.00 $18.36 $367.20 $0.00 $0.00 $20.20 $404.00


207 10" MJ Gland Pack 20 $19.81 $396.20 $19.81 $396.20 $20.00 $400.00 $26.46 $529.20 $0.00 $0.00 $24.10 $482.00


208 12" MJ Gland Pack 10 $20.62 $206.20 $20.62 $206.20 $21.00 $210.00 $27.54 $275.40 $0.00 $0.00 $26.75 $267.50


10







ATTACHMENT A
BID #868 WATER DISTRIBUTION PARTS - TALLY SHEET


CATEGORY ITEM #
DESCRIPTION


SPECIFICATIONS


ESTIMATED 
QUANTITY FOR 


A YEAR UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE


CONSOLIDATED PIPE & 
SUPPLY, INC.HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS HAYES PIPE SUPPLY, INC.


FERGUSON ENTERPRISES 
INC. DUBLIN WINNELSON


DELTA MUNICIPAL SUPPLY 
COMPANYPROPOSED AWARD


TOTAL $4,090.00 TOTAL $4,090.40 TOTAL $4,192.00 TOTAL $5,845.10 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $5,437.50


RED GASKET 
SETS 209


4" Full Face Red Rubber 
Gasket Set 10 $2.00 $20.00 $5.21 $52.10 $5.45 $54.50 $8.19 $81.90 $0.00 $0.00 $2.00 $20.00


210


6" Full Face Red Rubber 
Gasket Set 10 $2.85 $28.50 $8.46 $84.60 $8.50 $85.00 $13.26 $132.60 $0.00 $0.00 $2.85 $28.50


211


8" Full Face Red Rubber 
Gasket Set 10 $4.10 $41.00 $9.12 $91.20 $9.00 $90.00 $14.04 $140.40 $0.00 $0.00 $4.10 $41.00


212


16" Full Face Red Rubber 
Gasket Set 10 $37.65 $376.50 $38.46 $384.60 $37.65 $376.50 $67.86 $678.60 $0.00 $0.00 $42.00 $420.00


213


20" Full Face Red Rubber 
Gasket Set 10 $67.20 $672.00 $68.68 $686.80 $67.20 $672.00 $89.27 $892.70 $0.00 $0.00 $68.00 $680.00


214


24" Full Face Red Rubber 
Gasket Set 10 $85.00 $850.00 $96.15 $961.50 $94.00 $940.00 $132.43 $1,324.30 $0.00 $0.00 $85.00 $850.00


TOTAL $1,988.00 TOTAL $2,260.80 TOTAL $2,218.00 TOTAL $3,250.50 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $2,039.50


METER BOX 
& LIDS 215 Meter Box Plastic box with no lid 200 $7.50 $1,500.00 $8.06 $1,612.00 $8.00 $1,600.00 $7.69 $1,538.00 $0.00 $7.97 $1,594.00 $7.50 $1,500.00


216 CI  Meter Lid   -  Extra
Cast iron .200" to .700" on 
thickness  - no hole 300 $7.89 $2,367.00 $0.00 $9.50 $2,850.00 $7.89 $2,367.00 $0.00 $9.65 $2,895.00 $12.80 $3,840.00


217 Jumbo Meter Box & Lid Plastic box with plastic lid 40 $24.00 $960.00 $32.73 $1,309.20 $24.00 $960.00 $25.68 $1,027.20 $0.00 $25.26 $1,010.40 $75.00 $3,000.00


TOTAL $4,827.00 TOTAL $2,921.20 TOTAL $5,410.00 TOTAL $4,932.20 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $5,499.40 TOTAL $8,340.00


VALVE BOX 218 Valve Box Lids   -  Extra 10 $5.47 $54.70 $9.11 $91.10 $9.50 $95.00 $5.47 $54.70 $0.00 $0.00 $9.55 $95.50


219


Top Halve of Valve Box - 
24" to 36" 10 $13.97 $139.70 $20.33 $203.30 $20.00 $200.00 $13.97 $139.70 $0.00 $0.00 $19.75 $197.50


220


Bottom Halve of Valve 
Box - 24" to 36" 10 $18.22 $182.20 $24.67 $246.70 $24.00 $240.00 $18.22 $182.20 $0.00 $0.00 $20.80 $208.00


221 1"  Valve Box Riser 16 $3.04 $48.64 $4.89 $78.24 $5.00 $80.00 $3.04 $48.64 $0.00 $0.00 $7.50 $120.00


222 2"  Valve Box Riser 16 $5.47 $87.52 $10.44 $167.04 $10.50 $168.00 $5.47 $87.52 $0.00 $0.00 $9.30 $148.80


223 3"  Valve Box Riser 16 $8.50 $136.00 $15.67 $250.72 $15.00 $240.00 $8.50 $136.00 $0.00 $0.00 $13.10 $209.60


224 4"  Valve Box Riser 16 $10.32 $165.12 $20.89 $334.24 $20.20 $323.20 $10.32 $165.12 $0.00 $0.00 $17.00 $272.00


225 6"  Valve Box Riser 16 $17.01 $272.16 $28.78 $460.48 $27.85 $445.60 $17.01 $272.16 $0.00 $0.00 $24.00 $384.00


TOTAL $1,086.04 TOTAL $1,831.82 TOTAL $1,791.80 TOTAL $1,086.04 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $0.00 TOTAL $1,635.40


TOTAL BID 
PRICE $235,981.86


TOTAL BID 
PRICE $239,566.85


TOTAL BID 
PRICE $201,383.50


TOTAL BID 
PRICE $264,856.65


TOTAL BID 
PRICE $134,017.44


TOTAL BID 
PRICE $187,046.90


TOTAL BID 
PRICE $283,746.38


Contract Allowance 10.0% $23,598
Proposed Award $259,580


Awards
HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS $41,224  
HAYES PIPE SUPPLY, INC. $115,855 
FERGUSON ENTERPRISES INC. $19,499 
DUBLIN WINNELSON $7,663 
DELTA MUNICIPAL SUPPLY COMPANY $69,099 
CONSOLIDATED PIPE & SUPPLY, INC. $6,239 


11





		Wate Systemr- Distribution Parts Agenda Request File-Revised-email

		Water System- Distribution Parts Agenda Request with Backup-email

		Final- Water- Distribution Parts Agenda Request File

		Final- Water- Distribution Parts Backup

		Archive- Water- Distribution Parts Backup - Copy

		A- Bid #868 Distribution Parts Memo 1 30 2013

		B- Bid 868 Distribution Parts - Purchasing Backup 1

		C- Final- Bid #868 Distribution Parts Tally Sheet 2013



		Final- Bid #868 Distribution Parts Tally Sheet 2013














COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Water System Tony Parrott


Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to award both the base bid and an additive alternate bid for the Landscaping at Lake 


McIntosh to the low bidder, Steadham Grading, Inc., in an aggregate amount of $78,268.78, and authorization for the Chairman to sign 


the contract contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


Competitive bids were solicited and evaluated based upon by qualifications, responsiveness and experience. Steadham Grading, Inc. is 


being recommended after an exhaustive evaluation of the best responsive and most cost effective selection. 


 


This project was advertised to the general public in the legal organ newspaper and at three (3) construction notification services- 1) Reed 


Construction Data, 2) AGC Builder's Exchange Plan Room and 3) Construction Journal.  In addition, eleven (11) contractors were notified 


directly. Eight (8) firms obtained bid packages; Four (4) bids were received; Four (4) low bidders were evaluated.  


 


The base bid for the landscaping at the Lake McIntosh Park includes unit prices for the various planting materials, some rip rap for shore 


line protection along the park frontage at the lake and chain link fence on the Coweta County side of the lake.   


 


In addition, an alternate bid item for a one year exterior ground maintenance agreement was included.  The base bid price from 


Steadham Grading, Inc. was $73,268.76.  The alternate bid for the maintenance agreement price was $5,000.00 making the total bid 


price $78,268.76.  Having the maintenance agreement for one year will help establish the materials that are planted and enable the 


Water System to work this new area into the regular work schedule.


Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to award both the base bid and an additive alternate bid for the Landscaping at Lake 


McIntosh to the low bidder, Steadham Grading, Inc., in an aggregate amount of $78,268.78, and authorization for the Chairman to sign 


the contract contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


Funds are available in the Lake McIntosh project.


No


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentFebruary 14, 2013







LANDSCAPING AT LAKE McINTOSH PARK


FOR FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA


BID TABULATION 


BID DATE:  JANUARY 22, 2013


EST. UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL


ITEM # DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE


1 8' high, 25 gal Autumn Blaze Red Maple Tree, Complete EA. 20 215.82$            $4,316.40 190.00$            $3,800.00 175.00$            $3,500.00 450.00$            9,000.00$         


2 8' high, 25 gal, Sawtooth Oak Tree, Complete EA. 5 215.82$            $1,079.10 135.00$            $675.00 200.00$            $1,000.00 325.00$            1,625.00$         


3 7' high, 15 gal, Yoshino Cherry Tree, Complete EA. 13 150.42$            $1,955.46 110.00$            $1,430.00 165.00$            $2,145.00 410.00$            5,330.00$         


4 6' high, 10 gal, Crape Myrtle Tree, white bloom, Complete EA. 18 119.90$            $2,158.20 110.00$            $1,980.00 125.00$            $2,250.00 295.00$            5,310.00$         


5 2' high, 1 gal, Day Lily yellow bloom, Complete EA. 71 10.08$              $715.68 6.00$                $426.00 8.50$                $603.50 24.50$              1,739.50$         


6 3 gal Azaleas, pink bloom, Complete EA. 24 24.52$              $588.48 18.00$              $432.00 35.00$              $840.00 50.00$              1,200.00$         


7 8' high, 25 gal,Dogwood Tree, white bloom, Complete EA. 22 215.82$            $4,748.04 150.00$            $3,300.00 155.00$            $3,410.00 410.00$            9,020.00$         


8 2' high, 3 gal, Fire Power Dwarf Shrub, Complete EA. 18 27.25$              $490.50 * 21.00$              $378.00 35.00$              $630.00 41.00$              738.00$            


9 2' high, 1 gal, Knockout Rose Bush, Dk Pink, Complete EA. 27 21.80$              $588.60 25.00$              $675.00 15.00$              $405.00 48.00$              1,296.00$         


10 6" high, 1/2 gal, Veriegated Liriope (Monkey Grass), Complete EA. 115 2.12$                $243.80 * 2.00$                $230.00 4.50$                $517.50 15.00$              1,725.00$         


11 Pine Bark Mini-Nuggets 2 Cu. Ft. Bag, Installed Complete Bag 100 6.54$                $654.00 6.00$                $600.00 25.00$              $2,500.00 9.00$                900.00$            


12 Pine Straw, Installed Complete Bale 200 6.00$                $1,200.00 5.00$                $1,000.00 6.50$                $1,300.00 6.15$                1,230.00$         


13 Type III Rip Rap,  Complete SY 1,550 29.51$              $45,740.50 * 27.50$              $42,625.00 30.00$              $46,500.00 32.00$              49,600.00$       


14 Chain Link Fence, 6' high, Complete L.F. 600 11.65$              $6,990.00 * 18.00$              $10,800.00 26.00$              $15,600.00 34.00$              20,400.00$       


15 Pedestrian Gates 3' x 6' , Complete EA 2 150.00$            $300.00 750.00$            $1,500.00 1,500.00$         $3,000.00 925.00$            1,850.00$         


16 Allowances per Special Conditions. L.S. L.S. L.S. 1,500.00$         L.S. 1,500.00$         L.S. 1,500.00$         L.S. 1,500.00$         


TOTAL BASE BID 73,268.76$       * 71,351.00$       85,701.00$       112,463.50$     


* CORRECTED FOR MATH ERROR


ADDITIVE ALTERNATE BID


A1 One Year Exterior Grounds Maintenance Agreement L.S. L.S. L.S. 5,000.00$         L.S. 10,800.00$       L.S. 22,500.00$       L.S. 29,500.00$       


TOTAL BASE + ADDITIVE ALTERNATE BID 78,268.76$       82,151.00$       108,201.00$     141,963.50$     


STEADHAM GRADING INC ASSOCIATION MANAGEMENT GROUPAABBY GROUP TRI SCAPES INC





		Water System- Lake McIntosh Landscaping Agenda Request File- Revised-email

		Water System- Lake McIntosh Agenda Request with Backup-email

		Final- Water- Lake McIntosh Landscaping Agenda Request File

		Final- Water- Lake McIntosh Landscaping Backup












MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Special Called Meeting
Board of Commissioners


       January 22, 2013
                      
The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in a Special Called Executive Session on January 22,


2013, at 6:00 p.m. in the Commissioners’ Conference Room in Suite 100  of the Fayette County Administrative


Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Steve Brown, Chairman


Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman


David Barlow


Allen McCarty


Randy Ognio


Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator


Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk


Dennis Davenport, Interim County Attorney


Others Present: Frank Strickland, Attorney


Bryan Tyson, Attorney


____________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order


Chairman Brown called the January 22, 2013 Special Called Executive Session meeting to order at 6:02 p.m.


Approval of Agenda


Commissioner Ognio moved to approve the Agenda.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion


followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the Agenda is incorporated in these minutes.


EXECUTIVE SESSION


Commissioner Barlow moved to enter into Executive Session to discuss one (1) pending litigation.  Commissioners


Ognio and McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The Board entered into Executive Session at 6:04 p.m. and returned to Official Session at 6:55 p.m.


EXECUTIVE SESSION AFFIDAVIT


Commissioner Brown moved to authorize the Chairman to sign the Executive Session Affidavit stating one (1) item


of pending litigation was discussed in Executive Session.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  The motion


passed unanimously.  A copy of the Executive Session Affidavit, identified as “Attachment 1", follows these minutes


and is made an official part hereof.







Special Called Meting- Minutes
January 22, 2013
Page Number 2


ADJOURNMENT


Commissioner Barlow moved to adjourn the January 22, 2013 Board of Commissioners Special Called Executive


Session meeting.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed


unanimously.


____________________________________ ___________________________________


        Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                 Steve Brown, Chairman


The foregoing Board of Commissioners minutes were approved in Executive Session on the 22nd day of February


2013.


_________________________


Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk


  








MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


January 24, 2013
 7:00 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette
County’s Website at www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then
“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single
topic can be heard.


                       
The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on January 24, 2013 at 7:00 p.m. in
the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman
David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator
Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk
Dennis Davenport, Interim County Administrator


_______________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order Invocation, and Pledge of Allegiance


Chairman Brown called the January 24, 2013 Board of Commissioners meeting to order at 7:02 p.m.


Commissioner David Barlow introduced Pastor Al Meade of New Hope Baptist Church of Fayetteville, and he asked
Pastor Meade to offer the Invocation.  Pastor Meade offered the Invocation.


Commissioner Randy Ognio led the Board and those in attendance in the Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda


Commissioner McCarty moved to accept the Agenda.  Commissioner Oddo seconded the motion.  No discussion
followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


PUBLIC HEARING:


1. Consideration of Petition 1225-12, Gregory H. Moody, Jr. and Brenda K. Moody, Owners, and Lynette
M. Bowles, Agent, request to rezone 2.49 acres from A-R: Agricultural-Residential to A-R (LNS):
Agricultural-Residential (Legal Nonconforming Status) to bring said property into zoning compliance.
This property is located at 250 Rising Star Road and also fronts on Old Greenville Road.







Minutes
January 24, 2013
Page Number 2


Interim County Attorney Dan Davenport informed the Board that A-R (LNS) is a brand new zoning district for
Fayette County, and that this was the first application the Board has received to rezone into the new zoning
district.  He said the practical and legal effect for a change to the district would be to transform an illegal lot into
a non-conforming lot.  He stated that there has always been an issue with how to deal with non-conforming lots,
but he said that during the past twenty years he had never seen the new zoning district as a solution to the
problem.  He asked for an opportunity to look into what the County’s purposes were and how the new zoning
district was established since they may not be the best solution for the issue.  He asked the Board to table the
request until the February 28, 2013 Board of Commissioners meeting so he could return with a well-reasoned
presentation.  Discussion followed.


Commissioner Ognio moved to table the consideration of Petition 1225-12 until the February 28, 2013 Board
of Commissioners Meeting.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.
A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 1", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


Dawn Oparah: Ms. Oparah commended on the City of Peachtree City’s effort to keep its citizens informed of openings
on authorities or commissions, and said it was a very transparent way to engage citizens in the actions of the community.
She said she was excited about having a new Board of Commissioners with a new commitment for transparency and
doing things differently.  She stated that several months ago she stood before the previous Board expressing
dissatisfaction about the seating of the Ethics Board, but that she wanted to make another point about how the Ethics
Board was seated.  She thought it was important that when people serve on boards and authorities that the candidates
should be vetted by ensuring their credentials and that the entire process should be open and fair.  She said the current
Ethics Board was seated in a manner that was not open.  She added that the Ethics Board should have five people
serving on it, and that it was important that each member of the Ethics Board should be trained.  She asked the Board
to look into possibly adjusting the Board both in size and expectations.


Chairman Brown replied that the current Board of Commissioners’ position on boards, authorities, and committees is
to solicit publically and there is an effort to get the public involved.


Arnold Martin: Mr. Martin said he has attended a few of the Ethics Board meetings, and one of the biggest issues to
him was the size of the Board.  He added that it should be increased to five members that would allow decisive
perspectives.  He said it also appeared that Ethics Board had concerns or trepidation about protocols, and he suggested
that the Ethics Board be trained.  He commented that it appeared that there was nothing in place allowing an alternate
to immediately step up if an Ethics Board member could not be present, and that it could lead to a potential waste of
taxpayers’ money.  He said he had heard not all of the Ethics Board members or alternates were invited or given notice
about the meetings.  He concluded that the Board of Commissioners has oversight of the Ethics Board and other similar
bodies, and he requested the Board to increase the size of the Ethics Board to include five members and two alternate
members.  He also asked the Board to rewrite the Ethics Ordinance and that citizens should be involved in the process.
Mr. Martin then asked the Board, and each individual Commissioner, to consider District Voting, to consider the benefits
of District Voting, and to bring Fayette County into the 21st century by enacting District Voting just as the majority of
counties in Georgia and the United States have done.


Bob Ross: Mr. Ross spoke about the conduct of the Ethics Board at the January 23, 2013 Ethics Hearing, and he
pointed out that there were two issues brought under consideration.  The first issue, he said, concerned making direct
contact by a Commissioner to a department head.  He thought it was odd that this issue would be brought into an ethical
context when it should be an administrative policy or procedure, and that this issue may come under the duties or
responsibilities of who can directly give directions to whom.  He then commented on the second discussion, namely the
disclosing of Executive Session proceedings, and he stated that everyone who attends Executive Session meetings is







Minutes
January 24, 2013
Page Number 3


responsible to higher authorities than County Ordinances; such as the United States Constitution, the Georgia
Constitution, and state laws.  He continued that people always have the right to defend themselves physically and legally,
and that if felonies were discussed in Executive Session then the attendees have the obligation to do the right thing.
He concluded that the current Ethics Ordinance is flawed in those two areas, and while he hoped it would not be used
for another ten years, he suggested that the Ordinance does need to be cleaned up.  He also suggested that the
members of the Ethics Board undergo minimal training on Robert’s Rules of Order on how to run a meeting and have
ethical training to help distinguish ethical lapses from policy and procedural errors.  Mr. Ross also stated that he hoped
Fayette County would demonstrate its capacity to hear all of its citizens and that it would elect the most qualified citizens
regardless of the district they are from.


Alice Jones: Mrs. Alice Jones said she was pleased to see a new set of sitting Commissioners and she congratulated
them on their elections.  She informed the Board that she is Vice President of the North Fayette Community Association,
and she was coming to the Board on behalf of the residents of the north Fayette area who were concerned about the
stopgap processes of continuing the development of Kenwood Park.  She said Mr. David Brill, who is the president of
the Kenwood Park Association, has stated that there have not been any plans to continue Phases II and III of Kenwood
Park.  She said other areas, including Coweta County, have a state of the art amphitheater where they have public
gatherings, and the facilities pay for themselves.  She said there is ample acreage on the property at Kenwood Park
where a similar type facility could be constructed.  She recognized that there was a budget crisis and no money available
for continuation of development of the park; however, she said Fayette County does have professional ball players in
its community.  She suggested that the County could partner with them and other sports figures to get their name on a
facility, and they would put up the money to get it moving.  She said she wanted to sit down with the Board and the North
Fayette Community Association, and see whether or not an amenable decision could be reached for the development
of the facility.  She concluded that Fayetteville needs a state of the art facility that would accommodate winter and
summer sports.


CONSENT AGENDA:


Commissioner Barlow moved to approve the Consent Agenda.  Commissioners Oddo and McCarty seconded the motion.
No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


2. Approval of staff’s request to amend an architectural, engineering, and interior design services contract
with The Howell Group by approving Change Order #1, in the amount of $4,800.00, and authorization
for the Chairman to sign the Change Order contingent upon the County Attorney’s review.  A copy of
the request, identified as “Attachment 2", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


3. Approval of the Water Committee’s 2013 Meeting Schedule.  A copy of the request, identified as
“Attachment 3", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


4. Approval of the Water Committee’s recommendation to insert a letter into the February water bills
informing customers about current water restrictions.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment
4", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


5. Approval of the Water Committee’s recommendation to prepare a Resolution to swap twenty-two (22)
Fayette County Water System customers with twenty (20) City of Fayetteville Water Department
customers.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 5", follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.







Minutes
January 24, 2013
Page Number 4


6. Approval of a request from the Honorable Ann Jackson to install a service window in the Justice Center
Lobby to accommodate separation of passport services and adopt a budget amendment to increase
revenues and expenditures for this project in an amount not to exceed $1,500.00.  A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment 6", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


7. Approval of the January 2, 2013 Board of Commissioners Minutes and the January 10, 2013 Board of
Commissioners Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


8. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to renew Proposal No. P764 to Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc.
to conduct post-closure environmental monitoring and compliance activities at the two closed Fayette
County solid waste facilities on First Manassas Mile Road for a 12-month period, in an amount not to
exceed $73,570.00.


Stormwater Maintenance Director Vanessa Birrell explained that Solid Waste responsibilities falls into her
department.  She stated that staff is asking the Board to consider renewing the contract with Jacobs
Engineering Group, Inc. in order to continue the ongoing semiannual groundwater monitoring and the monthly
methane monitoring and reporting of results and interpretations to the Environmental Protection Division (EPD).
She said the contract would also be to prepare a minor modification request on the north side boundary.  She
said she was basing the recommendation on the following points: 1) that the contract for professional services
is still very competitive and relative and 2) that there was a risk to Fayette County where, if the contract was
rebid at this time, the costs to Fayette County would increase with lesser service.  She stated that Jacobs
Engineering Group, Inc. has accomplished much within the past years by cleaning up the previous consultant’s
mess; they installed a methane remediation system that has exceeded their expectations, and worked to
increase a better negotiation position with the EPD on the north side boundary.


County Administrator Steve Rapson added that he spoke to the president of Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc.
who agreed to lower the contract by $6,500.00, or an 8% reduction, versus what it was bid two years ago.
Additionally, Mr. Rapson reported that he told the president that this would be a three-year contract and that
the County would bid out in the future, so that the next cycle that the County goes through will have a one-year
contract with a two-year renewal option. Discussion followed.


Commissioner McCarty moved to approve Proposal No. P764 to Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc. in the amount
of $73,570.00, contingent upon the County Attorney’s review and approval, and subject to the Chairman’s
signature, or Vice Chairman’s signature if the Chairman is unavailable.  Commissioner Oddo seconded the
motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified as
“Attachment 7", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


NEW BUSINESS:


9. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to recodify Fayette County’s Ordinances through Municipal
Code Corporation, in the amount of $22,950.00 to be funded from the General Fund’s Unassigned Fund
Balance, and authorization for the Chairman to sign a contract or related documents contingent upon
the County Attorney’s review.







Minutes
January 24, 2013
Page Number 5


County Administrator Steve Rapson reported that as the County approves local ordinances, those ordinances
are sent to Municipal Code Corporation whom the County has done business with for the last twenty years.
He said Municipal Code Corporation is basically a sole-source vendor, and that Fayette County actually
contacted ten other counties, and each of them is using Municipal Code Corporation.  He said Municipal Code
Corporation takes the ordinance and put it into codified form.  He further reported that the ordinances for
Fayette County have not been updated since 2007, so there are currently fifty-seven (57) ordinances that need
to be revised.  He said it makes it extremely difficult to move forward because if there are any ordinances or
any codifications to be change, all of those codifications ripple as they are changed.  He said the bid price was
to reach out to Municode and have those 57 ordinances codified.  He concluded that in the future the
ordinances will be submitted at least yearly or biyearly in order to stay on top of this subject.  Discussion
followed.


Commissioner Barlow moved to accept staff’s recommendation to recodify Fayette County’s ordinances through
Municipal Code Corporation, in the amount of $22,950.00 to be funded from General Fund’s Unassigned Fund
Balance, and to authorize the Chairman to sign a contract or related documents contingent upon the County
Attorney’s review.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  Ms. Dawn Oparah commented “that it is
about time.” No other discussion occurred.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified
as “Attachment 8", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


Meet and Greet: County Administrator Rapson reported that beginning next week he will be going around and meeting
individually with all of the elected officials, the constitutional officers, as well as all the department heads.  He said that
effort would take him up until mid-February to meet everyone.  He said if you do not see him in his office and his light
is on, then he is somewhere around the County.


Temporary Security: County Administrator Rapson reported that next week the County would begin with a temporary
security fix with regards to securing Commission chambers so that if a resident would go to the restroom they cannot
walk through the entire corridor anymore.  He said the front entrance ways would be secured as well.


Stormwater Notices: County Administrator Rapson reported that all the Stormwater Notices for the Town hall Meetings
were actually at the Post Office earlier in the day.  He reminded the public that the Town hall Meetings were scheduled
for February 13, March 4, and March 25, 2013.


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


Executive Session: Interim County Attorney Dennis Davenport informed the Board that he had two items to discuss
in Executive Session involving pending litigation and to review the Executive Session Minutes from January 10 and
January 22 Called Meeting.


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


Commissioner McCarty: Commissioner McCarty said he was still excited about getting 5-0 votes since he was
accustomed to 3-2 votes and he was always on the “two” side.







Minutes
January 24, 2013
Page Number 6


Commissioner Oddo: Commissioner Oddo pointed out that there were a number of people present but that not
everyone has spoken.  He thanked everyone for coming, asked them to keep coming, and he encouraged people to
participate in their government.


Commissioner Barlow: Commissioner Barlow agreed with Commissioner Oddo’s comments.


Commissioner McCarty: Commissioner McCarty said he wanted people to understand that the Ethics system that
Fayette County currently has was not voted upon by any of the current County Commissioners, and that two of the
Commissioners voted against it.


Chairman Brown: Chairman Brown pointed out that there is an easel in the back of the room with a copy of the
Resolution that was passed on January 2, 2013, and it expresses the Board’s commitment to where it stands in terms
of its values and principles.  He said one of the things that are found in that document is that the Board owns up to its
problems and takes care of its problems.  He said an issue was raised in the public comment section, and justifiably so,
that the County did not contact the alternates for the Ethics Board.  He said the Board owns that, it was a mistake, it has
been corrected, and it will never happen again.  Chairman Brown also thought it was a marvelous idea to put citizens
together to look at the Ethics Ordinance.  He also commented on Mrs. Jones’ suggestion saying it was a wonderful idea
to and suggesting if anyone had Calvin Johnson’s number he would call personally.  He noted that Fayette County has
some really high-profile citizens and the Board would love to name a park after them if they are willing to put forward
some funds.


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


Pending Litigation: Chairman Brown moved to proceed into Executive Session on two pending legal items and for the
Board to review the Executive Session Minutes for January 10 and January 22.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the
motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The Board of Commissioners recessed into Executive Session at 7:42 p.m. and returned to Official Session at 9:25 p.m.


Return to Official Session:  Commissioner Barlow moved to come out of Executive Session.  Commissioners McCarty
and Ognio seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


Executive Session Minutes: Commissioner Oddo moved to approve the January 10 and January 22 Executive Session
Meeting Minutes.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed
unanimously.


Executive Session Affidavit: Commissioner Ognio moved to authorize the Chairman to sign an Executive Session
Affidavit for two pending legal items.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion
passed unanimously.  A copy of the Executive Session Affidavit, identified as “Attachment 9", follows these minutes and
is made an official part hereof.







Minutes
January 24, 2013
Page Number 7


ADJOURNMENT:


Commissioner McCarty moved to adjourn the January 24, 2013 Board of Commissioners meeting.  Commissioner Ognio
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The Board of Commissioners adjourned its January 24, 2013 meeting at 9:26 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
      Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                                                     Steve Brown, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 14th day of February 2013.


___________________________________
        Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk








MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Special Called Meeting
Board of Commissioners


January 29, 2013


 5:30 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette


County’s Website at www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then


“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single


topic can be heard.


                       


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Open Session for a Special Called Meeting on January


29, 2013 at 5:30 p.m. in the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue,


Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Steve Brown, Chairman


Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman


David Barlow


Allen McCarty


Randy Ognio


Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator


Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk


Dennis Davenport, Interim County Administrator
_______________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order


Chairman Steve Brown called the January 29, 2013 Special Called Board of Commissioners meeting to order at 5:33


p.m.


Commissioner David Barlow introduced Mr. John Harding, the presiding minister and Mission President of the Georgia


Atlanta Mission for the Church of Jesus Christ of Latter Day Saints.  Commissioner Barlow asked Mr. Harding to offer


the Invocation, and Mr. Harding did so.


Commissioner Allen McCarty led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda


Commissioner Oddo moved to accept the Agenda.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion


followed.  The motion passed unanimously.







Special Called Meeting- Minutes
January 29, 2013
Page Number 2


NEW BUSINESS:


1. Discussion of Fayette County’s Ethics Ordinance.


Chairman Brown stated that since he was embroiled with an issue at the moment he would officially recuse


himself from the discussion, that he would leave the meeting, and that he would turn the meeting over to Vice


Chairman Charles Oddo.  Chairman Brown then stepped down from the dais and left the room at 5:36 p.m.


Chairman Brown did not return at any point for the duration of the meeting.


Vice Chairman Oddo read his personal notes concerning a change the Ethics Ordinance.


[The following is a full transcript of Commissioner Oddo’s opening comments and personal notes as read to


the audience.  This transcript was requested by Commissioner Oddo and begins at 5:36:13 of the recording.]


Vice-Chairman Oddo: Well, thanks everybody for coming.  Please bear with me; this is my first shot at this,


so I hope you don’t shoot back.  We are here to discuss the ethics, an issue with the Ethics Ordinance we have


tonight.  I’m going to, by the way, I never know if my microphone is working.  It seems to be working now, the


first two or three meetings my wife kept telling me I wasn’t talking loud enough.  I’m talking just as loud as I


always do, but it seems to be getting back there, so if anybody has a problem hearing me please let me know.


I’m going to take a little liberty before we actually start, because the matter concerns me greatly, and this is an


opportunity for me to express to you folks my feelings on, not necessarily what happened last week, but going


forward.  So, there will be a little bit of both.  If you will bear with me, and this really won’t take as long, I just,


I made this real big so it’s easy to read because my eyes aren’t that great.  And you will have to forgive me for


using my Teleprompter.  The President has his and I have mine; they both work the same.  But I do want to


thank everybody for coming, these are my personal notes, my personal statement here.  This evening we’ve


all gathered to consider a change to our Ethics Ordinance.  Due to the nature of the change, the


Commissioners agreed that a special meeting was in order.  Before we begin, again, I’d just like to share some


personal observations and my take on results of last week.  I have not shared this statement with anybody, any


elected or appointed official.  Nobody knows what I am about to say here; until this moment.  And you will all


hear for the first time.  Because of the very serious nature of our Ethics Ordinance and its implementation, and


as your Commissioner, as one of your Commissioners, I believe I have an obligation to all of you to publically


share with you my thoughts.  We are all aware this past Wednesday evening the Fayette County Ethics Board


conducted a hearing into ethics complaints filed by former Commissioner Robert Horgan against current


Commissioner Steve Brown.  Commissioner Brown was found to have violated the Fayette County Ethics


Ordinance on two occasions.  What we witnessed, I believe, is how well-intentioned Ethics Ordinance can be


used in such a manner that it is contrary to the intent and spirit of the ethics it is intended to uphold.  It is my


feeling that this flaw, sort to speak, in and of itself, can create opportunities for unethical actions.  Without


assuming to know the reasons why the ethics complaints were filed in these two instances, and I am referring


to these two instances only, it was stated by the Ethics Board, essentially, that intent was not used as a basis


for the decision.  As perhaps many of you, of those who witnessed the proceedings tried to do, I did my best


to rationalize how a violation of ethics could have occurred when the intent of the respondent’s actions and


questions were for the very purpose of upholding ethical standards.  As found by members of the Ethics Board,


Commissioner Brown’s intent was not for personal gain.  Nor did they believe he intended to violate the Ethics


Ordinance.  It is my belief, in fact, evident in the complaints that Commissioner Brown was attempting to act


in the best interest of the citizens.  And to ensure he and the County he represents were acting in accordance


with rules and regulations.  At no time was Commissioner Brown’s intent in question.  He was, in fact, practicing


the very thing he was found to have violated.  Ethics.  For my own benefit, I looked up the definition of ethics







Special Called Meeting- Minutes
January 29, 2013
Page Number 3


in the Merriam- Webster Dictionary.  Here is what the very first entry says: The discipline dealing with what is


good and bad and with moral duty and obligation.  In the two instances cited in the complaints against


Commissioner Brown, I found it puzzling how Mr. Brown could have been construed to have been acting in any


way other than by the very definition of ethics; dealing with what is good and bad and with moral duty and


obligation.  One further reference to ethics, of which there’s many, according to Dr. Linda Elder, the Foundation


for Critical Thinking: Most people confuse ethics with behaving in accordance with social conventions, religious


beliefs, and the law, and don’t treat ethics as a stand alone concept.  It is my belief that an Ethics Board must


be charged with upholding the spirit of the law, rather than only the letter of the law; because law, or ordinance


in this case, cannot and should not assume to govern each and every single instance, action, thought, and


breath.  Ethics, by its very nature, is intuitive.  It is intangible.  It is the capacity of the human mind to know right


from wrong and to act accordingly.  Ordinance is the instrument we use to attempt to quantify right and wrong.


But an ordinance is incapable of accounting for every situation.  Therefore, the purpose of the Ethics Board


should be to determine good from bad and right from wrong.  In situations when applying an ordinance places


ethics and ordinance in conflict, I believe ethics should prevail.  It was my feeling that ethics did not prevail last


Wednesday.  The result last Wednesday was to the contrary.  It was the upholding of the letter of the law over


the spirit of the law.  Lest anyone assume otherwise, in no way am I attempting to cast aspersions on the


members of the Ethics Board who voted to find Commissioner Brown in violation.  Each member voted his or


her conscious in dealing with an ordinance that allowed them no leeway in consideration of circumstances or


intent.  My difference with the ethics decision lies in the authority I believe the Ethics Board members should


have to rule on whether ethics were or were not violated.  My opinion does not diminish the work of the Board


members, nor the immensely difficult job the Ethics Board members faced; especially in light of peripheral


events to the players in this story.  And in fact, the Ethics Board members themselves asserted that they did


not believe Commissioner Brown intended to act for personal gain, which clearly would have been a violation


of ethics.  To their credit, the members chose not to, to pursue no admonishment and no further action


regarding Commissioner Brown.  If a Board could reverse its decision, I would wholeheartedly recommend that


the Ethics Board reverse its decision of last Wednesday, January 23 to find Commissioner Brown not guilty of


any ethics violations.  But be that as it may, I am concerned greatly, as are my fellow Commissioners, and as


I believe a many citizens, as to how we go forward ensuring to the best of our ability, that our Ethics Ordinance


and our Ethics Board have the singular goal and capability to use good judgment when the written word


conflicts with intent.  If an Ethics Ordinance can be used to find a county official has violated that same Ethics


Ordinance, while that official is acting ethically, then we are possibly playing a game of “Gotcha”, which must


have no place in an ethics hearing.  And we have, potentially, a problem with potentially serious consequences.


If that problem is not addressed, situations as we have recently witnessed will most surely arise again, and we


could find ourselves, we could find the very application of the Ethics Ordinance itself to be unethical.  That is


why this special meeting was called tonight, and that is the immediate concern we will address tonight.  Our


goal tonight is to not completely rewrite the Ethics Ordinance, nor revise the rules composing the Ethics Board.


That is a massive task that cannot be done this evening.  But we wish to start.  With your input, we hope to


begin our process.  Especially directed towards a particular section in the Ethics Ordinance that we will be


addressing tonight.  And if we could hand out those flyers. (County Administrator Steve Rapson handed


printouts to each member of the audience.)  We’ve prepared a copy for your folks so you can see exactly what


we we’re talking about and what we, what our intentions to changes this evening.  And again, for technical


reasons, we’re going to confine ourselves to a small change this evening.  If you like, Mr. Davenport can explain


the more technical reason for it, but this is not just the appropriate time to be talking about the entire ordinance.


So that you all know, my personal philosophy is not to dwell on the past but to learn from it.  History is history.


The past is past and what is done is done.  What today is and tomorrow will be are what are important.  This


Board of Commissioners and future commissioners and county officials must have the opportunity to govern


in the best interest of the community in as much as governing in the best interest of the community is their







Special Called Meeting- Minutes
January 29, 2013
Page Number 4


solemn pledge, duty and obligation.  This Board of Commissioners and future commissioners and county


officials should not be preoccupied with worry over whether or not they have crossed a fine line.  If they are truly


dealing with what is good and bad and with moral duty and obligation.  So, with my feelings known, I would like


to begin this meeting and begin the discussion.  So, if am in order, we have a motion, we have a motion to


proceed?


Interim County Attorney Dennis Davenport: You certainly can ask for a motion to proceed at this time, or, if it


is appropriate for Commissioners to provide their comments at the same time; however you want to proceed


is fine Mr. Chairman.


[The transcript ends at 5:47:05 of the recording.]


A copy of the printout distributed to the audience, identified as “Attachment 1", follows these minutes and is


made an official part hereof.


Commissioner Barlow mentioned that Fayette County had a previous Ethics Ordinance that was changed by


majority vote of the previous Commission.  He stated that former County Attorney Scott Bennett authored and


reviewed the revised ordinance, and he asked Interim County Attorney Davenport if that was correct.  Mr.


Davenport replied that he presumed that was correct.  Commissioner Barlow said he was in attendance at the


Ethics Hearing for Chairman Brown, and he heard all three Ethics Board members say how disappointed they


were with the latest version of the Ethics Ordinance.  He further stated that former Commissioner Horgan


admitted under oath that Chairman Brown did have the right to seek legal counsel and the right to bring what


he believed to be an illegal or unethical actions to the proper authorities, however, Chairman Brown was still


found guilty, and he asked Mr. Davenport if that was correct.  Mr. Davenport replied that, if the question is


“whether he was found guilty”, then he believed the answer was correct.  Commissioner Barlow stated that, as


things currently stand, if the men’s restroom next to his office were to run out of toilet paper, and he called


Buildings and Grounds Department Head Greg Ownby, who is in charge of janitorial service, to ask for more


toilet paper, then anyone could cite him for an ethics violation.  Mr. Davenport replied that it would be an


instruction by Commissioner Barlow to a Department Director and that it would be a violation.  Commissioner


Barlow asked if a constituent shows an interest with assisting in the County’s Special Olympics program, or has


a child who wants to play basketball, and asks Recreation Department Head Anita Godbee to send them some


information for them, then could anyone cite him for an ethics violation.  Mr. Davenport replied that


Commissioner Barlow is a Commissioner directing a Department Director to do something, so that would be


a violation.  Commissioner Barlow concluded that he found the examples ridiculous, and said Ethics


Ordinances are in place to ensure the property operation of democratic government and that public officials be


independent, impartial, and responsible to the people.  He added that Ethics Ordinances are in place to ensure


public offices are not used for personal gain.  He said it was obvious that there were former elected officials


who want to distort the County’s ordinances to the point where Commissioners cannot ask for toilet paper for


the men’s restroom.  He said the Ethics Ordinance should not be a tool to force public officials away from


servings the citizens, and he said he supported the change to the ordinance so that Commissioners can handle


the basic task of communicating with the County’s top members while servicing the taxpayers.


Commissioner McCarty commented that in doing his duties to represent the citizens of Fayette County,


sometimes he needs information that he does not have at hand.  He said if he went to County Clerk Floyd


Jones, or to the secretarial staff, or any other Department Head in Fayette County, and ask for information and







Special Called Meeting- Minutes
January 29, 2013
Page Number 5


if they could provide him with a budget item that would also be a violation of the Ethics Ordinance.  He said he


was one-hundred percent for making a change to make the Ethics Ordinance a viable ordinance that will work


for the citizens of Fayette County while keeping things the way they should be.


Commissioner Ognio stated that he reviewed the minutes of 2012, and he did a search for the word “suggest.”


He reported that the word “suggest” or “suggestion” was printed in the minutes ninety seven times.  He


concluded that even in the Board of Commissioners meetings, the Commissioners could be cited for making


a suggestion to Department Heads.  He said the Board would have to make a change so that the


Commissioners could communicate with Department Heads and have a working conversation.  


Interim County Administrator Dennis Davenport stated that at this time it would be appropriate to entertain a


motion from one of the Commissioners.


Commissioner Ognio moved to delete the second sentence of Section 2-209(n) of the Fayette County Ethics


Ordinance.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.


Public Comment:


Vice Chairman Oddo opened the floor for Public Comment.


Bob Ross: Mr. Ross pointed out some final suggestions for the final rewording of Section 2-209(n) as printed


on the handout distributed during Vice Chairman Oddo’s speech.  He said he did not know if the word “refrain”


was directive or suggestive in its verbiage, and he suggested the words “shall not interfere” to substitute the


words “shall refrain”.  He said the language speaks of the “daily administrative affairs of departmental directors”,


and he said the Board may want to consider leaving the word “daily” out of that phrase since there could only


be some affairs that are done on a quarterly or an annual basis, and they have not been included by limiting


the wording to “daily administrative affairs”.  He pointed out the language that reads: “not make


recommendations regarding the hiring, firing, or disciplining.”  He said there were a number of other actions that


a Commissioner could take that would be deemed unethical such as contracting, work assignments, and


relationships, and he thought the suggested wording was limiting the Ethical Ordinance to a three, very specific


activities.  He thought the Board should consider broadening the language a little.  He suggested that the


section should also read: “Commissioners shall not make unethical recommendations”.  He said putting the


word “unethical” in the language allows judgment and allows people to separate the suggestions that


Commissioners would make on a regular basis by opening up the opportunity to get away from a very black


and white language.  He said this would also allow a convening Board to have some latitude in terms of


judgment.  He suggested that an office should be established within the County government where an


employee could go if they thought they received an unethical request from a higher authority.  


County Administrator Steve Rapson interjected that the County Administrator was the person designated for


employees to go to if they thought they had unethical requests or suggestions. 


Ray Watt: Mr. Watt began saying he agreed with Vice Chairman Oddo’s opening statement, and he


commented on the structure of the Ethics Ordinance.  He spoke about Section 2-209(e) and suggested how


it could be reworded.  Mr. Watt also commented on Section 2-209(h) and the recent issue concerning the


County’s software and hardware.  He stated that the language of the Ethics Ordinance should allow for common


sense, pointed out changes Forsyth County recently made to its Ethics Board, and made recommendations


on how appointments should be made for the Ethics Board.







Special Called Meeting- Minutes
January 29, 2013
Page Number 6


Pat Hinchey: Mr. Hinchey stated that he has particular experience with the Ethics Ordinance in Fayette County


going back several years, and that he supported and understood the immediacy and need to “get this done now


on this particular item.”  He begged the Board to not drop the issue with the immediate fix since the Ethics


Ordinance needed to be completely reviewed.  He mentioned that Fayette County’s original Ethics Ordinance


was very strong, but the current Ordinance was ensured to be very restrictive in terms of what a Commissioner


could be found guilty.  He said the original Ethics Ordinance worked very well.  


Angela Bean: Ms. Bean commended Vice Chairman Oddo on his comments and added that she agreed


wholeheartedly with what all of the Commissioners said.  She spoke about the “ethics challenge” that everybody


is facing; even in the Georgia General Assembly where they are looking at revising their Ethics Code.  She said


the challenge facing the Georgia General Assembly is the same challenge Fayette County would find itself in,


namely refining the Ethics Ordinance so much that the “Gotcha Code” comes into existence.  She agreed with


Mr. Hinchey that there should be a review of the Ethics Ordinances very carefully to make sure there are no


more opportunities for “Gotcha” on Ethics violations.  She also publically called on the Ethics Board to consider


reversing their decision.


Dawn Oparah: Ms. Oparah thanked the Board for taking the time to listen to the public, and she appreciated


Vice Chairman Oddo’s comments in that he spoke about the spirit of the law and its intent.  She thought that


was important because sometimes people abuse their power, and that the law should be written in such a way


that power is not abused while allowing someone to do their job and be true servants to the community.  She


said she was concerned that the Ethics Ordinance was flawed and the flaws were broader than a particular


issue.  She suggested that a committee be formed to look at the Ethics Ordinance and review it.  She reiterated


her desire for the Board to appoint someone to look at a new Ethics Ordinance and bring it to the Board.  She


also stated that training for the Ethics Board is important and she speculated that if the Board members had


been better trained and truly understood intent that they may have had a different outcome.  She agreed with


Ms. Bean saying she wanted the Ethics Board to reverse its decision since it was not fair for people who do not


truly understand what they are doing to make a decision that sticks.


Simon Marks: Mr. Marks said he thought the current Ethics Board was doing the best job they know how, but


he said Commissioner Oddo brought up some points that they were not considering.  He suggested that they


should be some education and training for the Ethics Board.  He said that everyone thinks they know ethics,


but when someone looks at the true definition of it, oftentimes people miss that it involves moral obligations and


interpreting the spirit of the law.  He thought while people will get up and do the best job they can, he thought


there should be some formalized training to ensure that the people on the Ethics Board do fully understand


what “ethics” truly means.


Alice Jones: Mrs. Jones said she has lived in Fayette County since 1997 and that she has followed the


Commissioners “to the letter” since moving to the County.  She applauded the Board for addressing this issue.


She said when she first learned of the ethics complaint brought against Commissioner Steve Brown, and the


source that brought it, she was shocked.  She said the shock came about resulting from some previous


engagement that another speaker addressed earlier with the marijuana charge.  She added “if that is not ethics


you tell me what is.”  She said she was embarrassed to say that, after reading the content of what was


presented, the Board has it on queue that this issue needs to be addressed.  She agreed that the Ethics


Ordinance needs to be reviewed in a larger scale to ensure it is meaningful and to ensure there is a Board in


place that can address it effectively without political connections.  







Special Called Meeting- Minutes
January 29, 2013
Page Number 7


Bill Gainey: Mr. Gainey suggested that when an ethics complaint is received that perhaps the complaint could


be referred to the State Court, or perhaps the Chief Judge of the State Court.  He suggested that a pool of


fifteen or twenty people could be created and educated, so that if a complaint is received the judge could pull


a certain number of people from the trained pool of educated members, and those people could hear the


complaint.


Arnold Martin: Mr. Martin thanked the Board for taking up this issue.  He observed that he has witnessed twice


in Ethics meetings where there has been a decision about when the next hearing would be and where


everybody starts pulling their calendars out, including the accused, to figure out when their schedule works.


He asked who was in charge, and suggested that there should be a set time for hearings so that people know


and do not have to look at their calendars what works for the accused.  He also pointed out that when meetings


are scheduled there are many citizens who would like to be involved in the process but are not able to make


it at 5:30 p.m.


Public Comment effectively closed at this time.


Interim County Administrator Dennis Davenport spoke about the modification or changing of the ordinance,


spoke about the current problems Fayette County has due to not codifying its ordinances in 6 ½ years, and the


difficulty to revamp the entire Ethics Ordinance at the same time that it is revamping the entire Code of


Ordinances.  He acknowledged that while the timing was good and that this effort was “a small bite”, but he also


acknowledged that small bite was about all that could be done in light of revamping the Code of Ordinances.


County Administrator Steve Rapson added some clarifying remarks to Mr. Davenport’s comments, and he


answered a question from the audience.  Mr. Don Rehwaldt and Mr. Davenport also briefly spoke about the


time it took to recodify the Town of Tyrone’s ordinances and the benefits.


Commissioner Ognio restated his motion to delete the second sentence in Section 2-209(n) of the Fayette


County Ethics Ordinance.  Commissioner Barlow once again seconded the motion.  No further discussion


followed.  The motion passed 4-0-1 with Chairman Brown being absent.


Commissioner Barlow: Commissioner Barlow reminded the citizens that the current Board is dedicated to


inclusivity, and it is interested in the citizens’ involvement and input.  He also said he wanted to reach out to


the “community of faith” saying the County has been fortunate to have folks from various churches come to the


meetings.  He reiterated that the Board is looking for volunteers from the churches to offer the Invocation, and


he asked that those volunteers contact him so he could visit with them.


Commissioner McCarty: Commissioner McCarty said everyone needed to understand that in the past he was


one of two votes and there were a lot of things he just could not do.  He said there were some things he wanted


on the Agenda that did not get on the Agenda.  He stated that “that door is closed, we have a new door” and


that the Board was here for the best interest of the citizens of Fayette County.  He concluded that the Board


wanted to fix what has been broken.


Commissioner Ognio: Commissioner Ognio thanked the citizens, said the Board has heard their comments,


and stated that Mr. Rapson had made notes of their comments.  He said that the Board would see that each


comment would be addressed.







Special Called Meeting- Minutes
January 29, 2013
Page Number 8


Vice Chairman Oddo: Vice Chairman Oddo said he echoed the Board’s sentiments and he thought that it was


appropriate to bring Chairman Steve Brown back into the meeting.  Chairman Brown did not return to the


meeting since he left the building earlier.  Vice Chairman Oddo thanked the audience for coming to the meeting


and said he really appreciated it. 


ADJOURNMENT:


Commissioner Barlow moved to adjourn the January 29, 2013 Special Called Board of Commissioners meeting.


Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed 4-0-1 with Chairman Brown


not present.


The January 29, 2013 Board of Commissioner’s Special Called Meeting was adjourned at 6:26 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________


      Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                                                     Steve Brown, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,


Georgia, held on the 14th day of February 2013.


___________________________________


        Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk








AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners


February 14, 2013
 3:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation, and Pledge of Allegiance


Acceptance of Agenda


PRESENTATION / RECOGNITION:


1. Proclamation of February 2013 as “Heart Health Month”.


2. Presentation of the Government Finance Officers Association Distinguished
Budget Award for Fayette County’s annual budget document for the fiscal
year beginning July 1, 2011 and ending June 30, 2012.


3. Presentation of the Government Finance Officer’s Association Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for both Fayette County’s
and Fayette County’s Water System Comprehensive Annual Financial
Reports (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.


4. Presentation by Fayette County’s auditing firm, Nichols, Cauley & Associates,
LLC. of the results of the Fiscal Year 2012 annual audit.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


CONSENT AGENDA:


5. Approval of staff’s request to accept a proposed amendment to extend an
existing Intergovernmental Agreement between the Town of Tyrone and
Fayette County, Georgia for an additional eight (8) months, and to include a
provision for use of a borrow pit at Handley Park.


6. Approval of the Water System Director’s recommendation to award Bid #868-
Water Distribution Parts, consisting of six contracts in an aggregate amount
of $259,580.00, to six companies that were low bidders on items used by the
Fayette County Water System for water distribution, and authorization for the
Chairman to sign the contracts contingent upon the County Attorney’s review.


7. Approval of the Water Committee’s recommendation to award both the base
bid and an additive alternate bid for the Landscaping at Lake McIntosh to the
low bidder, Steadham Grading, Inc., in an aggregate amount of $78,268.78,
and authorization for the Chairman to sign the contract contingent upon the
County Attorney’s review.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS


Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman


David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


i


STAFF


Steve Rapson, County Administrator
Dennis Davenport, Interim County


Attorney
Floyd Jones, County Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
February 14, 2013
Page Number 2


8. Approval of the January 22, 2013 Special Called Meeting Minutes, the January 24, 2013 Board of
Commissioners Meeting Minutes, and the January 29, 2013 Special Called Meeting Minutes.


NEW BUSINESS:


9. Consideration of the City of Fayetteville’s request to annex a 0.51 acre lot located at 104 Ellis Road in Land
District 5, and to rezone said lot from C-H (Commercial Highway) to C-3 (Highway Commercial).


10. Consideration of the County Administrator’s recommendation to restructure the current Pension Committee to
include the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners or his/her Designee, Human Resources Director, Finance
Director, County Administrator, and an Employee appointed by the County Administrator.


11. Consideration of the County Clerk’s recommendation to fill one vacated position on the Fayette County Ethics
Board.


12. Consideration of the County Clerk’s request to fill one new position, for a three-year term, on the McIntosh Trail
Community Service Board.


13. Consideration of Commissioner David Barlow’s recommendation to appoint Mrs. Gina Martin and Mr. Clarence
Leathers to the Fayette County Library Board, with four-year terms, and with each appointment to begin on
January 1, 2013 and to expire on December 31, 2016.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


ADJOURNMENT:








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Administration County Administrator Steve Rapson


Consideration of the County Administrator's recommendation to restructure the current Pension Committee to include the Chairman of 


the Board of Commissioners or his/her Designee, Human Resources Director, Finance Director, County Administrator, and an Employee 


appointed by the County Administrator.


On April 9, 2009, the Board of Commissioners adopted the Defined Benefit Plan with GEBCorp and created the Defined Benefit Plan  


establishing the five (5) member Board of Trustees (Pension Committee). The approved  Defined Benefit Plan document establishes the 


membership of the Pension Committee as the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners or his/her Designee, Human Resources Director, 


Finance Director, County Administrator, and an Employee appointed by the County Administrator. 


 


On March 11, 2010, the Board of Commissioners formally established the Pension Committee and established the membership to 


include the Board of Commissioner Vice Chairman Herb Frady, Human Resources Director, the County Administrator, Director of the 


Water System, Public Safety Director, and the Sheriff. Note: Commissioner Allen McCarty replaced Vice Chairman Herb Frady on the 


Retirement Pension Committee in December. 


 


This recommendation restructures the current make up of the Pension Committee to agree with the Defined Benefit Plan document as 


recommended and approved by the Board of Commissioners. The Pension Committee will continue to meet quarterly to review the funds 


and financial performance relating to the Defined Benefit and Contribution Plans.


Approval of the County Administrator's recommendation to restructure the current Pension Committee to include the Chairman of the 


Board of Commissioners or his/her Designee, Human Resources Director, the Finance Director, County Administrator, and an Employee 


appointed by the County Administrator.


Not Applicable.


No


No No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


The County Administrator "appointed Employee" will be selected at the end of February, after the County Administrator has completed 


meeting individually with each Department Head. This will complete the Pension Committee membership and finally bring the Finance 


Director into its membership as reflected the Defined Benefit Plan document.


New BusinessThursday, February 14, 2013







Board of Commissioners Minutes


April 9, 2009


Page 4


  


  


    


  


 
         


OLD BUSINESS:
C.       CONSIDERATION OF A RECOMMENDATION BY THE RETIREMENT STUDY COMMITTEE THAT THE


ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF GEORGIA/GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
CORPORATION OF GEORGIA BE THE DESIGNATED VENDOR TO PROVIDE A DEFINED BENEFIT
RETIREMENT PLAN FOR FAYETTE COUNTY EMPLOYEES:


Public Safety Director Allen McCullough remarked that this Committee had conducted research and fact finding during
the last 22 months ago at the Board direction. He said the Board had directed the Committee to research several
questions including (1) recruitment; (2) retention; (3) turnover rates; (4) competitiveness with surrounding cities and
counties relative to the County’s benefit program; (5) the status of the County’s existing Defined Contribution Plan; and
(6) the feasibility of the hybrid defined benefit type plan.  He said the Committee had determined overwhelmingly that
the County employees both supported the re-evaluation of the existing Defined Contribution Plan as well as would
support a Defined Benefit Plan with their contributions.  He said a survey was done with the County employees and the
results in support of that was 97%.  He said in the Fall of last year, the Board commissioned an RFP process to begin
which would look at both the Defined Contribution Plan and the Defined Benefit Plan.  He said the Committee was
instructed to report back to the Board by December, 2008.  On December 11  he appeared before the Board providingth


a report from the Committee.  He said the Committee’s recommendation to the Board at that time was that the
Committee unanimously felt that at this time it could not make a recommendation on any of the proposals as submitted
by the vendors.  He said during the Committee’s extensive process of evaluation for several months, the Committee
expressed its concern about the lack of clarity regarding the administrative costs, the lack of clarity and uncertainty
regarding future legal and actuarial costs, lack of clarity and uncertainty regarding plan oversight including staff time from
Human Resources and plan implementation.  He said the presentations provided by the various vendors really did not
give the Committee at that point the information that it needed to make a good sound recommendation.  He said as a







Board of Commissioners Minutes


April 9, 2009


Page 5


result the Committee had asked the Board for more time to review and also to be able to investigate multi employer
provider options at which point the Board gave the Committee permission to proceed.  


Mr. McCullough further remarked that the Committee had come back on February 4 , 2009 and the Board voted toth


accept the Retirement Study Committee’s recommendation to reject only those proposals that were related to Defined
Benefit.  He noted that the Committee’s next appearance was on March 12  at which point the Committee had enoughth


time necessary to interview and to further be able to bring back a recommendation to the Board for the Deferred
Compensation and Defined Contribution plan.  He said at that time, the Board voted to support the Committee’s
recommendation for Mass Mutual/AmRet.  He said the Committee’s focus was turned toward the defined benefit
retirement plan, and at the Board’s meeting on April 1  the Committee presented a recommendation for the Board’sst


consideration.  He said it was the Retirement Study Committee’s recommendation that the Association of County
Commissioners of Georgia/Government Employee Benefits Corporation of Georgia be the designated vendor to provide
a Defined Benefit Retirement Plan for Fayette County employees.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as
“Attachment No. 15", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


Chairman Smith asked Mr. McCullough if the 3.8% County contribution had changed any to give the Board any cause
for concern that it was no longer a viable number.  Mr. McCullough replied that he did not have any new information that
this figure had changed, and Human Resources Director Connie Boehnke confirmed that the figure had not changed.
Mr. McCullough said the most current numbers had been run a few weeks ago and still supported the 3.8% was the
County’s contribution.  


Chairman Smith asked Chief McCullough to comment on the issue of high turnover among County employees and
especially Public Safety employees.  Mr. McCullough replied that he had been with the County for twenty-seven years
and the downturn in the economy since last year had been much more significant than the economy downturns in the
past.  He said Public Safety had historically found that when the economy improves the department’s turnover rate
increases and there would be a revolving door syndrome.  He said the Committee was trying to be proactive so that
departments could keep their current employees and give them something that provided a level of security. 


Commissioner Frady asked Mr. McCullough to explain the cost savings to the County.  Mr. McCullough replied that at
the present time the County was contributing up to 8% and at this point the proposal was that amount would be dropped
to 6.3% with the County contribution to the Defined Benefit Program being 3.8% and the employee contribution being
2.5%.  He said the County had agreed to contribute 2.5% to the Defined Contribution Program if the employee matches
that to 5%.  He said overall there would be a reduction from 8% to 6.3%. He said the County was not moving in the
direction of any unfunded liability where there would be credit for prior years of service.  He said the employees who had
already been here 30 years would probably not benefit from this plan.  He said if the Board approved this plan, it would
start at zero on July 1 .  Commissioner Frady expressed concern with future Boards and changes that might be madest


to this Defined Benefits Plan.  


Commissioner Maxwell thanked the committee for their diligence and remarked that he had supported a Defined Benefit
Plan from day one.  He said this was a two part process.  He said the Board had already voted 4-1 in November 2008
to go to a Defined Benefit Plan.  He said in reviewing the parameters of the Defined Benefits Plan that the Committee
was recommending he was satisfied that the parameters of the proposed Defined Benefits Plan were adequate with
safeguards in place based on actuarial studies that the decision that this Commission was about to make would not put
the County at risk either now or in the future.  He said the plan would in fact save the County money.  He said he would
not be able to support the decision for GEBCorp and wanted to make sure that there was no misunderstanding.  He said
he supported the Defined Benefit Plan but would prefer a different vendor, and for that reason he would be abstaining
from the vote.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


April 9, 2009


Page 6


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve the Retirement Study Committee’s recommendation that the
Association of County Commissioners of Georgia/Government Employee Benefits Corporation of Georgia be the
designated vendor to provide a Defined Benefit Retirement Plan for Fayette County employees.  Commissioner Hearn
seconded the motion, discussion followed.


Chairman Smith commented on the concerns of many companies filing bankruptcy.  He said those were private plans
and were underfunded.  He said the Defined Benefits Plan that this Board was voting on tonight would be a plan that
was funded every year and it was not a plan that would put the County in the same position as current private companies
that were failing.  He remarked on the comment that the County would never be able to get out of this plan and he said
actually the County could get out.  He said unlike private concern plans, this Board could vote to get out of this plan any
time that it wanted to and any future Board could do the same thing.  He said concern had also been expressed about
Board risk and future Boards making changes.  He said the Boards in the future could also make changes to the existing
plan and increase the contributions to it by any amount that they saw fit.  He said this Board could not obligate or stop
future Boards from doing what they want to do while in office.  He commented on the loss of revenue and said this was
also a very real issue, however, this Board would be saving the County approximately $500,000 per year.  He felt it was
critical to remember that there was a savings in this plan.  He said since this process started approximately 24 months
ago, this Board had tried its best to examine, investigated and ask questions and assistance of people who were more
knowledgeable about the inner workings of these plans.  He commended everyone involved for getting all of the
information necessary for this Board to make an intelligent decision tonight.                             


The motion carried 3-1-1 with Commissioner Frady voting in opposition and Commissioner Maxwell abstaining from the
vote.  


D.         CONSIDERATION OF STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION FOR A DESIGNATED VENDOR TO PROVIDE THE
COUNTY’S EMPLOYEE HEALTH INSURANCE SERVICES:


Human Resources Director Connie Boehnke remarked that the Human Resources Department was in the process of
reviewing various options for employee health insurance.   She briefly discussed the issue of co-pays for employees and
noted that the committee was looking to see if there were any options for employees.  She said they were also looking
into the possibility of self-insurance as an option.  She said there would be a formal recommendation for the Board at
the April 23, 2009 Board of Commissioners’ meeting.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No.
16", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


 







Board of Commissioners Minutes


March 11, 2010


Page 5


  


NEW BUSINESS:
D.             CONSIDERATION OF STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION TO ESTABLISH A PENSION COMMITTEE FOR THE


QUARTERLY REVIEW OF FUND PERFORMANCE FOR THE COUNTY’S DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN,
401A AND 457B RETIREMENT PLANS:


County Administrator Jack Krakeel remarked that consistent with the plan provider that the County has for its 401A and
457B Retirement Plans was the establishment of a pension committee that could monitor fund performance that make
up these individual plans.  He said the function of this committee would be to meet on a quarterly basis to review that
fund performance.  He said the objectives that guide the fund performance are actually developed by the plan provider.
He said to his knowledge there had never been such a committee in Fayette County and he was asking for the Board’s
consideration to formally appoint a pension committee that could meet to review how these funds perform and then make
recommendations should a fund be closed or a new fund brought in for the employees to consider investing in.  He said
the Board had already developed a sound and consistent policy and there was a formal policy on investment here in the
County.  He said the Board had already decided on a suitable investment provider as well as selecting the diversified
investment options with varying objectives and risk return objectives.  He remarked that the pension committee’s purpose
would primarily be one of monitoring and evaluating performance results of the individual funds that make up the portfolio
of funds that are made available to employees in the 401A and 457B Plans. He said it was his recommendation to
appoint the members as identified in the agenda request and specifically to appoint a member of the Board of
Commissioners to the pension committee as well.  


Chairman Smith asked Commissioner Frady if he would serve on this committee as representative of the Board of
Commissioners.  Commissioner Frady replied that he would be glad to serve on this committee.  Commissioner Maxwell
felt Vice Chairman Frady was going to do a good job being the Board’s representative on this committee, but suggested
a review of the Commissioner position annually or bi-annually or something of that nature might be a good idea.  


Chairman Smith made a motion to approve the formation of a Pension Committee consisting of Board of Commissioners
Vice Chairman Herb Frady, the County Administrator, Director of Human Resources, Director of the Water System,
Public Safety Director and the Sheriff for a quarterly review of fund performance for the County’s Defined Contribution
Plan, 401A and 457B retirement plans. Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of
the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 11", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.









































		Final- Administration- Retire...ittee Agenda Request File

		Final- Administration- Retirement Committee Backup

		04-09-2009Minutes

		03-11-2010Minutes-Redacted

		PensionCommitteeRequest-Backup

		Pension Committee Agenda RequestFile.pdf

		Pension CommitteeBackup














COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners County Clerk Floyd Jones


Consideration of the County Clerk's recommendation to fill one vacated position on the Fayette County Ethics Board.


On November 7, 2012, the Board of Commissioners seated the Ethics Board.  Mr. Dan Langford was appointed to a three-year term on 


the Ethics Board, Ms. Sheila Huddleston was appointed to a two-year term on the Ethics Board, and Mr. Scott Rowland was appointed to 


a one-year term on the Ethics Board.  Additionally, Mrs. Larris Marks was appointed to a three-year term as an alternate member, and 


Ms. Pota Coston was appointed to a two-year term as an alternate member. 


 


Mr. Dan Langford resigned from the Ethics Board during the January 16 Ethics Board hearing.  Mrs. Larris Marks served in his place 


during the January 23 Ethics Board Hearing. The Ethics Board has unanimously voted to retain Mrs. Marks on the Ethics Board as Vice-


Chair of the Board until a permanent member is selected to fill Mr. Langford's position.   


 


Section 2-213(a)(7) of the Ethics Ordinance (Ordinance 2010-10) reads, in part: "Any vacancy in the membership shall be filled for the 


unexpired term in the same manner as the initial appointment."   


 


This request is for the Board to consider filling one vacated position on the Fayette County Ethics Board, for a three-year term, due to Mr. 


Langford's resignation.


Consideration of the County Clerk's recommendation to fill one vacated position on the Fayette County Ethics Board.  Staff is seeking the 


Board's direction on whether to empanel an alternate, advertise, or seek Board nominations to fill the vacated position. 


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Staff understands the Board of Commissioners desire to review the existing ethic ordinance and perhaps this is the opportunity to begin 


that process.  The Ethics Board is scheduled to hear a new complaint on February 26, 2013.


New BusinessThursday, February 14, 2013





















		Final- Commissioners- Ethics ...cancy Agenda Request File

		Final- Commissioners- Ethics Board Vacancy Backup

		Larris J. Marks- Redacted

		Pota E. Coston- Redacted












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Proclamation of February 2013  as "Heart Health Month".


Every year, the American Heart Association designates the month of February as "American Heart Month".  This designation is designed 


to draw awareness to the fact that that over half a million Americans pass away due to heart disease.  This equates to approximately one 


out of every three deaths in America being attributed to heart disease and stroke.  This problem effects the lives of Americans from coast 


to coast, and impacts the lives of citizens in Fayette County. 


 


Fayette County is proud to to join other counties across the United States in proclaiming February as "Heart Health Month".  By doing so, 


the Board of Commissioners encourages the citizens of Fayette County to research and learn the risk factors associated with heart 


disease and stroke and to implement habits and lifestyle changes to reduce the individual dangers.


Proclamation of February 2013  as "Heart Health Month."


Not Applicable


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Per request from Debbie Britt; Piedmont Fayette Hospital; Executive Director, Community and Public Relations.  


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, February 14, 2013







PROCLAMATION 


 


HEART HEALTH MONTH 


February 2013 


 


WHEREAS, Every year, heart disease takes the lives of over half a million Americans, and it 


remains the leading cause of death in the United States for both men and women; and 


 


WHEREAS, This devastating disease has impacted many people of all ages and races in the Fayette 


community; and 


 


WHEREAS, Many heart attack victims do not recognize the indicators until it is too late, when 


only one in five are is able to reach a hospital quickly enough to benefit from 


treatment; and 


 


WHEREAS, Many more Americans are unaware of the danger of cardiac arrest, with about 95 


percent of sudden cardiac arrest victims dying before reaching the hospital; and 


 


WHEREAS, This month, as American Heart Month is observed across our nation, let us all take 


personal responsibility to reduce the risk of heart disease and recommit to better heart 


health for all Americans; and 


 


WHEREAS, We encourage all citizens to be aware of risk factors that can lead to heart disease, 


including:  high blood pressure, high cholesterol, diabetes, obesity, physical inactivity, 


tobacco use, and family history; and 


 


WHEREAS, All citizens can slow or even prevent coronary artery disease by taking steps toward a 


healthier lifestyle by taking everyday steps to get enough exercise, eat right, practice 


portion control, reduce sodium and fat from your diet, manage stress and quit 


smoking; and 


 


WHEREAS, As part of the national observance for American Heart Month and in support of efforts 


by Piedmont Fayette Hospital and the American Heart Association to raise awareness 


of heart disease; 


 


NOW, THEREFORE, WE, THE FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


PROCLAIM and recognize February 2013 as “HEART HEALTH MONTH” and in doing so we 


urge and invite all Fayette County citizens to raise awareness of Heart Disease, to take steps to 


improve their own heart health, and to encourage colleagues, friends, and family to do this same. 


 


So Proclaimed this 14
th
 Day of February 2013 


 


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


      ________________________ 


    Steve Brown, Chairman 





		Final- Commissioners- Heart Health Month Agenda Request File

		Final- Commissioners- Heart Health Month Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Commissioner David Barlow


Consideration of Commissioner David Barlow's recommendation to appoint Mrs. Gina Martin and Mr. Clarence Leathers to the Fayette 


County Library Board, with four-year terms, and with each appointment to begin on January 1, 2013 and to expire on December 31, 2016.


The Library Board is made up of seven members.  Four of the members are nominated by the local municipalities they represent; namely 


Fayetteville, Tyrone, Brooks, and Peachtree City.  The remaining three positions are considered "at-large" and are appointed by the 


Board of Commissioners.  On December 31, 2012, the appointments for Jeanette Ballard, Dortha Stinson, and Jean White expired.  Jean 


White served at the nomination of the City of Fayetteville, and she was reappointed for another four year term. 


 


During its December 5, 2012 Workshop Meeting, the Board of Commissioners directed staff to advertise the two expiring positions.  The 


two positions were advertised from December 11, 2012 through January 4, 2013.  Five applications were received during that time.  


During the January 10, 2013 Board of Commissioners meeting, Commissioner Barlow agreed to review the applications and interview the 


candidates. Jeanette Ballard and Dortha Stinson both declined to be reappointed for personal reasons. 


 


Commissioner Barlow and Library Director Chris Snell interviewed each candidate and agreed to recommend Mr. Clarence Leathers and 


Mrs. Gina Martin for appointment to the Library Board.


Approval of Commissioner David Barlow's recommendation to appoint Mrs. Gina Martin and Mr. Clarence Leathers to the Fayette County 


Library Board, with four-year terms, and with each appointment to begin on January 1, 2013 and to expire on December 31, 2016.


Not Applicable.


No


No No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Sound Process.


New BusinessThursday, February 14, 2013








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners County Clerk Floyd Jones


Consideration of the County Clerk's request to fill one new position, for a three-year term, on the McIntosh Trail Community Service 


Board.


The McIntosh Trail Community Service Board (MTCSB) is a public entity created by the Georgia legislature in 1993 to provide mental 


health, developmental disability and addictive disease services.  Services are available to residents of Butts, Fayette, Henry, Lamar, Pike, 


Spalding and Upson Counties. The agency is headquartered in Griffin, and works under the Region 3 Board and under the statutes of the 


Georgia Department of Behavioral Health and Development Disabilities. 


 


Historically, Fayette County has had two members seated on the MTCSB.  The number of seats afforded to each county is based on that 


county's population according to the most recent United States decennial census.  A county with a population of 50,000 or less is 


afforded one seat, and counties with populations of 50,000 or greater "shall appoint one member for each population increment of 50,000 


or any portion thereof". 


 


Fayette County's population, according to the last U.S. census, is 106,567 citizens.  This census count allows Fayette County to place a 


third member on the MTCSB.  Recently, the MTCSB contacted Fayette County and provided a recommendation to fill the new position.


Staff seeks the Board's direction on whether to advertise, to seek Board nominations, or for the Chairman to appoint a selection 


committee to fill the new position for the McIntosh Trail Community Service Board. 


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Similar to the process used with Commissioner Barlow and the Library Board recommendation and appointment.


New BusinessThursday, February 14, 2013















Search


››


Google Custom Search 


McIntosh TrailServicesLocationsCalendarNewsletterCurrent EventsResources


External 


LinksJob 


Opportunites


Policies and


ProceduresContact UsEmployee Handbook


Who We Are


The McIntosh Trail Community Service Board is a public 


entity created by the Georgia legislature in 1993 to provide 


mental health, developmental disability and addictive disease 


services. Services are available to residents of Butts, Fayette, 


Henry, Lamar, Pike, Spalding and Upson counties. McIntosh 


Trail is CARF accredited.


Our Mission


The mission of McIntosh Trail Community Service Board is 


to offer individuals experiencing symptoms associated with 


mental illness, addictive disease and/or developmental 


disability the hope for optimal functioning by providing 


quality behavioral health services and supports.


JOIN THE VOICE OF 


RECOVERY: IT’S WORTH 


IT


Care Connection


770.358.5252


Georgia Crisis & 


Access Line


1.800.715.4225


Grievance Hot 


Line


770.358.8466


Page 1 of 3McIntosh Trail CSB


2/1/2013http://www.mctrail.org/







McIntosh Trail Community Service Board is an active 


participant in the National Recovery Month initiative through 


their Substance Abuse program New Choices. On Thursday, 


September 27th, 2012 at 3:00pm to 6:00pm, New Choices, 


a TANF Ready to Work program, is hosting an Addictive 


Awareness and Empowerment through Recovery Event at 


the Lamar County Civic Center. For more information, 


download our flyer and press release.


The Butts County 


Counseling Center/


Child and Adolescent 


Clubhouse Opens


The Butts County Counseling Center/ Child and Adolescent 


Clubhouse is a resiliency support program for middle/ high 


schoolers who are receiving counseling services at Butts 


County Counseling Center.


The Clubhouse program is designed to provide a 


comprehensive and unique set of services for adolescents and 


their families experiencing behavioral symptoms, family 


difficulties, problems in adjustment, isolation and other 


challenges related to mental health.


Clubhouse supportive activities include:


• Tutoring


• Therapeutic Recreational Activities


• Peer Support Services


• Social Activities and Outings


• Game Room


• Music Studio


• GED preparation


• SAT preparation


• Employment counseling


• Aftercare Services


Commission on 


the Accreditation


of Rehibilitation 


Facilities (CARF)


1.888.281.6531


Services:


• Addictive Diseases


• Developmental 


Disabilities


• Mental Health


• Specialty


Page 2 of 3McIntosh Trail CSB


2/1/2013http://www.mctrail.org/







Contact Information:


For Enrollment in the Clubhouse:


Call 770-358-5252 for a Mental Health Assessment


to evaluate appropriateness for membership. 


About Us | Board of Directors | Privacy Practices | Calendar | Newsletter | External Links | Job Opportunites | 


Contact Us


Addictive Diseases | Developmental Disabilities | Mental Health | Specialty


Butts County | Fayette County | Henry County | Lamar County | Pike County | Spalding County | Upson County


Site design ©2008 by ahstudio.org | Navigation is mygosuMenu ©2003,2004 by Cezary Tomczak


Page 3 of 3McIntosh Trail CSB


2/1/2013http://www.mctrail.org/







Search
Google Custom Search 


McIntosh TrailServicesLocationsCalendarNewsletterCurrent EventsResources


External 


LinksJob 


Opportunites


Policies and


ProceduresContact UsEmployee Handbook


Board of Directors


Butts County


Sandra T. Haisten


Robert B. Green


Fayette County


Ken Schall


Terry Willis


Henry County


Susan Craig, Chair


Robert J. Gosnell, Vice-Chair


Carolyn Brown


Mary Evans-Battle 


Care Connection


770.358.5252


Georgia Crisis & 


Access Line


1-800-715-4225


Grievance Hot 


Line


770.358.8466


Services:


• Addictive Diseases


• Developmental 


Page 1 of 2McIntosh Trail CSB: Board of Directors


2/1/2013http://www.mctrail.org/directors.html







Lamar County


Nancy Anderson


Pike County


Robert Blalock


Spalding County


Joy Kelley, Secretary


Cecil Davis


Vacant


Upson County


Laurie Mameli


Disabilities


• Mental Health


• Specialty


About Us | Board of Directors | Privacy Practices | Calendar | Newsletter | External Links | Job Opportunites | 


Contact Us


Addictive Diseases | Developmental Disabilities | Mental Health | Specialty


Butts County | Fayette County | Henry County | Lamar County | Pike County | Spalding County | Upson County


Site design ©2008 by ahstudio.org | Navigation is mygosuMenu ©2003,2004 by Cezary Tomczak


Page 2 of 2McIntosh Trail CSB: Board of Directors


2/1/2013http://www.mctrail.org/directors.html







Search


››


Google Custom Search 


McIntosh TrailServices


Addictive 


DiseasesDevelopmental 


DisabilitiesMental 


HealthSpecialty


Community 


SupportHousing 


SupportNew 


ChoicesPeer 


SupportPine 


WoodsReflections


LocationsCalendarNewsletterCurrent EventsResourcesPolicies and


ProceduresContact UsEmployee Handbook


Care Connection


770.358.5252


Georgia Crisis & 


Access Line


1-800-715-4225


Page 1 of 2McIntosh Trail CSB Report Card


2/1/2013http://www.mctrail.org/reportCard.html







If you have any comments or questions about this report card 


contact Janet Robinson, CARF Coordinator at 


jrobinson@mctrail.org or 770-358-8266 


Grievance Hot 


Line


770.358.8466


Services:


• Addictive Diseases


• Developmental 


Disabilities


• Mental Health


• Specialty


About Us | Board of Directors | Privacy Practices | Calendar | Newsletter | External Links | Job Opportunites | 


Contact Us


Addictive Diseases | Developmental Disabilities | Mental Health | Specialty


Butts County | Fayette County | Henry County | Lamar County | Pike County | Spalding County | Upson County


Site design ©2008 by ahstudio.org | Navigation is mygosuMenu ©2003,2004 by Cezary Tomczak


Page 2 of 2McIntosh Trail CSB Report Card


2/1/2013http://www.mctrail.org/reportCard.html





































		Final- Commissioners- McIntosh Trail Agenda Request File

		Final- Commissioners- McIntosh Trail Backup

		Commissioners- McIntosh Trail Backup

		McTrail Backup-1

		McTraiil Backup-2

		McTrail Backup-3

		McTrail Backup-4



		SKMBT_C25213020112320












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Finance Mary S Holland


Presentation by Fayette County's auditing firm, Nichols, Cauley & Associates, LLC. of the results of the Fiscal Year 2012 annual audit.


Nichols, Cauley & Associates, LLC recently completed the independent audit of the County's accounting records for the 2012 fiscal year. 


The firm will be presenting the results of the audit to the Board of Commissioners. 


None.


Not Applicable.


Yes Annually


Yes Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


Note: Government Finance Officers Association Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for Fayette County's and 


Fayette County's Water System Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.  


Government Finance Officers Association Distinguished Budget Award for Fayette County's annual budget document for the fiscal year 


beginning July 1, 2011 and ending June 30, 2012.


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, February 14, 2013







2012 Audit Presentation 
for Fayette County, 


Georgia


Presented by


Nichols, Cauley & Associates, LLC
William Sammons, CPA, CIA


Gregory M. Chapman, CPA, CIA, CGAP







Today’s Agenda…


• Audit Reports


• Required Communications


• Financial Statement Highlights







Audit Reports


• Independent Auditors’ Report on the 
County’s Financial Statements


• Independent Auditors’ Report on the Water 
System’s Financial Statements


• Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based 
on an Audit of the Financial Statements 
Performed in Accordance with Government 


Auditing Standards 







Audit Reports


• Report on Compliance with requirements of 
OMB Circular A-133


• Agreed Upon Procedures Report On The 
County’s Compliance With The Financial 
Assurance Provisions Of The Municipal 
Solid Waste Landfill Criteria Under Subtitle D 
Of The Resource Conservation Recovery Act







Required Communications


• Our responsibility under GAAS


• Independence


• Significant accounting policies


• Significant accounting estimates


• Significant audit adjustment







Statement of Financial Position Analysis
(In Thousands)


$0


$50,000


$100,000


$150,000


$200,000


$250,000


$300,000


$350,000


$400,000


$450,000


2009201020112012


Total Assets $374,683$387,927$374,132$380,775


Total Liabilities $110,540$124,062$111,365$115,116


Total Net Assets $264,143$263,866$262,767$265,658







Net Asset Analysis
(In Thousands)


$0


$20,000


$40,000


$60,000


$80,000


$100,000


$120,000


$140,000


$160,000


2009201020112012


Invested in Capital $128,318$107,757$133,114$141,981


Restricted $82,469$87,356$94,071$73,502


Unrestricted $53,356$68,752$35,583$50,175







Revenues and Expenses
(In Thousands)


$0


$20,000


$40,000


$60,000


$80,000


$100,000


$120,000


2009201020112012


Total Revenues $96,307$90,649$77,951$75,717


Total Expenses $90,526$90,926$79,049$81,707







Revenue Sources
(In Thousands)


$0


$5,000


$10,000


$15,000


$20,000


$25,000


$30,000


$35,000


$40,000


$45,000


2009201020112012


Program $24,879$23,403$23,912$24,619


Property taxes $37,627$39,053$37,981$36,089


SPLOST $15,103$12,255$161$0


Sales taxes $8,990$9,635$9,572$10,011


Other $9,708$6,303$6,325$4,997







Expense Breakdown
(In Thousands)


$0


$5,000


$10,000


$15,000


$20,000


$25,000


$30,000


$35,000


$40,000


2009201020112012


General government $15,816$17,477$13,911$13,747


Judicial $5,801$5,607$5,151$5,571


Public safety $34,915$33,801$34,914$35,487


Public works $13,867$13,183$4,841$5,110


Water system $12,891$13,083$13,336$14,433


Other $7,236$7,773$6,896$7,360







Thank you for the 
opportunity to provide the 
County with our services.


QUESTIONS?





		Final- Finance- Audit Presentation Agenda Request File

		Final- Finance- Audit Presentation Backup






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Board of Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Presentation of the Government Finance Officers Association Distinguished Budget Award for Fayette County's annual budget document 


for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2011 and ending June 30, 2012.


This is the 15th consecutive year Fayette County has received this award from the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA). To 


qualify for the budget award, Fayette County had to satisfy nationally recognized guidelines for effective budget presentation. The 


guidelines are designed to assess how well Fayette County's budget document serves as a policy document, as a financial plan, as an 


operations guide, and as a communications device.  


 


GFOA is a  prestigious nonprofit professional association serving over 17,600 government professionals throughout North America.  It is 


considered the gatekeeper for monitoring and recommending improvements to government financial reporting and consistently influences 


changes in reporting standards that "raise the bar" for government entities.  


 


Acknowledge Fayette County's receipt of this award.  Chairman Steve Brown will make the presentation to the County's Finance Staff. 


Not applicable.


Yes Last year


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, February 14, 2013













		Final- Finance- Budget Award Agenda Request File

		Final- Finance- Budget Award Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Board of Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Presentation of the Government Finance Officers Association Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for both 


Fayette County's and Fayette County's Water System Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 


30, 2011. 


This is the 19th consecutive year Fayette County has received this award from the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA). To 


achieve this recognition, an impartial panel of finance professionals examines the Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports (CAFR) and 


judges compliance with the high standards set by GFOA. The report must demonstrate full disclosure which clearly communicates the 


County's financial story.  


 


GFOA is a  prestigious nonprofit professional association serving over 17,600 government professionals throughout North America.  It is 


considered the gatekeeper for monitoring and recommending improvements to government financial reporting and consistently influences 


changes in reporting standards that "raise the bar" for government entities.  


 


Acknowledgment Fayette County's receipt of this award.  Chairman Steve Brown will make presentation to the County's Finance Staff. 


Not applicable. 


No Last year 


No No


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, February 14, 2013





































		Final- Finance- CAFR Award Agenda Request File

		Final- Finance- CAFR Award Backup

		COUNTY GFOA AWARD

		WATER SYSTEM GFOA AWARD





